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North Hunterdon-Voorhees  [*NKC HELIES Pi.D.
Reglonal High School District wmicraes p. rveues

Assistant Superintendent of
Curriculum/Pupil Personnel Services

“Providing Success for All Students”

SUSAN PRESS
1445 State Route 31, Annandale, NJ 08801 School Business Administrator/
Tel: 908-735-2846 FAX: 908-735-6914 Secretary, Board of Education

December 3, 2015

President and Members of the Board of Education
North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District
County of Hunterdon, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School
District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the
accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests
with the management of the Board of Education. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data
presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to
present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds and account groups of
the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District’s
financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial,
statistical, and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District’s
organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the management’s
discussion and analysis, the basic financial statements and schedules, as well as the auditor’s report
thereon. The statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally
presented on a multi-year basis. The District is required to undergo an annual single audit in
conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, and the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations” and New Jersey OMB’s Circular Letter 04-04, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of
Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid”. Information related to this single audit, including the
auditor’s report on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws, regulations,
findings and recommendations are included in the single audit section of this report.

1) REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES:

North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District is an independent reporting entity within the
criteria adopted by the Government Accounting Standards Board as established by Statement #14. All
funds and account groups of the District are included in this report. The North Hunterdon-Voorhees
Regional High School District Board of Education and all its schools constitute the District’s reporting
entity.

The District is a comprehensive high school district providing a full range of educational services
appropriate to grade levels 9 through 12. These include regular, vocational (through Hunterdon County

Serving the Boroughs of Califon, Glen Gardner, Hampton, High Bridge, and Lebanon;
the Town of Clinton and the Townships of Bethlehem, Clinton, Franklin, Lebanon, Tewksbury and Union.
An Equal Opportunity Employer
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Polytech), as well as special education. The District enrollment for the 2014-15 fiscal year, was 2822,
which is 71 students below the previous year’s enrollment. The following details the changes in the
student enrollment of the District over the last 10 years:

Student Enrollment

Percent
Fiscal Year N.H. V.H.S. District Change
2005-06 1751 1292 3043 4.4%
2006-07 1807 1261 3068 0.8%
2007-08 1907 1217 3124 1.8%
2008-09 1878 1155 3033 (2.9%)
2009-10 1846 1140 2986 (1.55%)
2010-11 1830 1151 2981 (0.17%)
2011-12 1822 1136 2958 (0.77%)
2012-13 1786 1156 2942 (0.54%)
2013-14 1743 1150 2893 (1.67%)
2014-15 1732 1090 2822 (2.45%)

2) ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK:

Growth in the North Hunterdon-Voorhees area has stabilized. Subsequently, student population is
anticipated to remain flat.

3) MAJOR INITIATIVES:

The academic performance of students at both North Hunterdon and Voorhees High Schools remains
high when compared to schools across the state, according to each high school’s School Performance
Report prepared by the NJ Department of Education. Additionally, students’ academic performance is
very high when compared to their peer schools in the report.

In the first ever administration of the Partnership for Assessment of Readiness for College and Careers
(PARCC) assessment in the Spring of 2015, North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District
students scored well above the state averages in almost all sections, meeting or exceeded expectations.
The PARCC test was the first state mandated assessment that was taken completely online. PARCC
readiness was one of the reasons the district implemented its 1:1 mobile computing device initiative.
The district successfully deployed chromebooks to all grade levels in the final phase of the initiative in
the 2015-2016 school year. The chromebooks, along with upgrades to the district’s wireless
infrastructure, provided students with an optimal testing environment for PARCC.

Our students continue to move on to higher education following high school, with approximately 90%
of the Class of 2015 district-wide enrolling in some type of post-secondary education. About 68.6% of
the Class of 2015 attended a four-year institution.



4) INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROL:

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure
designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure
that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). The internal control structure is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept
of reasonable assurance recognizes that: 1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefit likely to
be derived; and 2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal awards and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for
ensuring that adequate internal controls are in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations related to those programs. Internal control is also subject to periodic evaluation by the
District management.

As part of the District’s single audit, described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of
internal control, including that portion related to federal awards and state financial assistance programs,
as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

5) BUDGETARY CONTROLS:

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The objective of
these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriate budget approved by the voters of the municipalities. Annual budgets are adopted for the
general fund, the special revenue fund, and the debt service fund. Project-length budgets are approved
for capital improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final budget amount as
amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item
basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as re-appropriations of fund

balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be re-appropriated are reported as reservations of
fund balance at June 30, 2015.

6) ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS:

The District’s accounting records reflect generally accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the District is
organized on the basis of funds and account groups. These funds and account groups are explained in
“Notes to the Financial Statements”, Note 1.

7) CASH MANAGEMENT:

The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as detailed in “Notes to the
Financial Statements”, Note 2. The District has adopted a cash management plan which requires it to
deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Plan Act (“GUDPA”). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect



governmental units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The
law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in New
Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

8) RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited to general liability, automobile
liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property and contents, and fidelity
bonds. A chart detailing the District’s insurance coverage and applicable limits is included in the
Statistical Section.

9) OTHER INFORMATION:

State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or registered
municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Suplee, Clooney and Company was selected by the
Board. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed to
meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1984, and the related OMB Circular A-133 and New
Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04. The auditor’s report on the basic financial statements and combining
and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial section of this report. The
auditor’s reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit section of this
report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional
High School District Board of Education for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the
citizens and taxpayers of the school district and thereby contributing their support to the development
and maintenance of our financial operation. The preparation of this report could not have been
accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of our financial and accounting staff.

Respectfully submitted, Respectfully submitted,
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Frank C. Helies, Ph.D. Susan Press
Interim Superintendent of Schools School Business Administrator/Board Secretary
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SupPLEE, CLoOONEY & CoMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122
Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education

North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District
County of Hunterdon

Annandale, New Jersey 08801

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District, County of Hunterdon, New Jersey
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the District’'s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, audit
requirements prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of Education, State of New
Jersey, the provisions of U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 “Audits
of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations” and State of New Jersey OMB
Circular 04-04 “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid.”
Those standards and provisions require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.



SuPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the District's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the North
Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District, County of Hunterdon, New Jersey as of
June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 6 to the basic financial statements, in 2015, the District adopted
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions and Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date (an amendment of GASB Statement 68). Our opinions
are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, budgetary comparison information in Exhibit C-1
through C-3 and the pension schedules in Exhibit L-1 through L-4 be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

9
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Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District's basic
financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information schedules such as the
combining and individual fund financial statements and the Schedules of Expenditures of
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance, as listed in the table of contents, as required by
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments
and Nonprofit Organization,” New Jersey's OMB Circular 04-04, “Single Audit Policy for
Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid,” and the State of New Jersey,
Department of Education, Division of Finance, are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The accompanying supplementary information schedules such as the combining and
individual fund financial statements and the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and
State Financial Assistance, as listed in the table of contents, as required by U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments and Nonprofit
Organization,” New Jersey's OMB Circular 04-04, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal
Grants, State Grants and State Aid,” and the State of New Jersey, Department of Education,
Division of Finance is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting records used to prepare
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the accompanying supplementary information is fairly stated,
in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The other information, such as the introductory and statistical sections, has not been

subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and
accordingly, we do not express on opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated December 3, 2015 on our consideration of the North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High
School District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the North
Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High | School District's internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

December 3, 2015
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NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
HUNTERDON COUNTY, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
UNAUDITED

The Management's Discussion and Analysis of the North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High
School District (the “District’) offers readers of the District’s financial statements a narrative
overview of the financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. The intent of this
discussion is to look at the District’s financial performance as a whole; therefore readers should
also review the transmittal letter at the front of this report, along with the District’s financial
statements and notes to the financial statements to enhance their understanding of the District's
financial performance.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of the Required Supplementary
Information (RSI) specified in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’'s (GASB) Statement
Number 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis of State and
Local Governments. Certain comparative information between the current fiscal year (2014-2015)
and the prior fiscal year (2013-2014) is required to be presented in the MD&A. In FY2015 the
District implemented GASB 68 “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions”. Information
necessary to restate the financial information provided for FY2014 was not available; therefore, the
information has not been restated.
Financial Highlights

In the District-Wide Financial Statements:

¢ Net position of Governmental Activities increased $3,828,170.62 or 17.31%

¢ Net position of the Business-type Activities increased by $51,480.02 or 23.31%.

In the Major Fund Financial Statements:

* Governmental fund revenues exceed expenditures by $1,461,585.20.

e Among governmental funds, the General Fund’s fund balance decreased $2,099,476.92.

13



NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
HUNTERDON COUNTY, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
UNAUDITED

Overview of the Financial Statements

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (‘CAFR”) consists of three parts: Management's
Discussion and Analysis (this section), The Basic Financial Statements, and Required
Supplementary Information. The Basic Financial Statements include two kinds of statements that
present different views of the District, District-wide Financial Statements and Fund Financial
Statements.

District-wide Financial Statements provide both short-term and long-term information about
the District’s overall financial status.

Major Fund Financial Statements report the District’s operations in more detail than the
District-wide statements on individual parts of the District, the Governmental Funds,
Proprietary Funds and Fiduciary Funds.

Governmental Funds Statements tell how basic services such as regular and special
education were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending.

Proprietary Funds Statements offer short and long-term financial information about the
activities the District operates like a business, which include food services.

Fiduciary Funds Statements provide information about the financial relationships in which
the District acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others.

The notes to financial statements are also included, which are an integral part of the financial
statements. The information in the notes provides detailed data on the District's financial
operations.

Required supplementary information further explains and supports the financial statements with a
comparison of the District's budget for the year.

14



NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
HUNTERDON COUNTY, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
UNAUDITED

District-Wide Financial Statements

The District-wide Financial Statements report information about the District as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net
position includes all of the District’s assets and liabilities. All current year’s revenue and expenses
are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or disbursed.

The District-wide Financial Statements report the District's net position and how they have
changed. Net position, the difference between the District's assets and liabilities, is one way to
measure the District's financial health or position. Over time, increases or decreases in the
District's net position are an indicator of whether its financial position has improved or diminished.
The causes of this change may be a result of many factors, some financial and some not. Non-
financial factors include the District's property tax base, current laws in New Jersey restricting
revenue growth, facility condition, required educational programs and other factors.

In the District-wide Financial Statements, the District's activities are divided into two categories,
governmental and business-type activities.

e Governmental activities - All of the District's programs and services are reported here
including, but not limited to regular and special education instruction, support services,
operation and maintenance of plant facilities, pupil transportation and extracurricular
activities. Property taxes and state formula aid finance most of these activities.

» Business-type activities - These services are provided on a charge for goods or services
basis to recover all the expenses of the goods or services provided. District charges fees
to help it cover the costs of certain services it provided. The food service account is
reported as business activities.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s funds, focusing
on major funds. Funds are accounting devices the District uses to keep track of specific sources of
funding and spending on particular programs. Some funds are required by state law and by bond
covenants. The District establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular

purposes (i.e. long-term debt) or to show that it is properly using certain restricted revenues (i.e.
entitlement grants).
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NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
HUNTERDON COUNTY, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
UNAUDITED

Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The District maintains three financial funds:

Governmental Funds: The District's activities reported in governmental funds focus on how
money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for
spending in the future years. These funds are reported using an accounting method called
modified accrual accounting that measures cash and all other financial assets that can
readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed
short-term view of the District's general government operations and the basic services it
provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or
fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance educational
programs. The relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the
government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities) and governmental
funds statements is reconciled in the financial statements.

Proprietary Funds: Services for which the District charges a fee are generally reported in
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as the District-wide
financial statements. The District's enterprise funds (one type of proprietary fund) are the
same as its business-type activities but provide more detail and additional information, such
as cash flow.

Fiduciary Funds: The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others,
such as scholarship funds and the student activities funds. The District is responsible for
ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended purposes
and by those to whom the position belong. The District excludes these activities from the
District-wide financial statements because it cannot use these assets to finance its
operations.

16



NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
HUNTERDON COUNTY, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
UNAUDITED

Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole

Table 1 below reflects the District’s net position as a whole for the Fiscal years 2015 and 2014.

TABLE 1
NET POSITION
FY2015 FY2014

ASSETS
Current & Other Assets $27,401,705.38 $23,492,484.67
Capital Assets 27,162,452.00 26,071,582.00

TOTAL ASSETS 54,564,157.38 49,564,066.67
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

Related to pensions 1,058,942.00

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 1,058,942.00
LIABILITIES
Other Liabilities 4,100,568.41 1,092,147.84

Long-Term Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS
Related to pensions
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Resticted
Unrestricted ( Deficit)
TOTAL NET POSITION

24,112,369.99

11,293,532.49

28,212,938.40

1,200,524.00

1,200,524.00

19,528,361.18
22,550,188.65
(15,868,912.85)

12,385,680.33

17,228,681.69
20,886,295.38
(936,590.73)

$26,209,636.98

$37,178,386.34

The District’s combined net positon was $26,209,636.98 on June 30, 2015. The Net Position for
June 30, 2014 have not been restated to reflect the District’s Net Pension Liability required by the
implementation of GASB 68. The District’s investment in capital assets is shown net of any related
debt used to acquire those assets.
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NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
HUNTERDON COUNTY, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
UNAUDITED

Table 2 shows changes in net position for fiscal years 2015 and 2014.

TABLE 2
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FY2015

REVENUES
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services

Operating Grants & Contributions

General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Grants & Entitlements
Other

Total Revenue

EXPENSES

Instruction

Pupils and Instructional Staff
General & School Administation,

$1,237,696.36
9,967,339.71

47,841,907.00
7,235,272.18
260,919.34

$1,019,976.42
4,593,560.10

47,606,384.00
6,022,238.35
759,875.93

66,543,134.59

35,359,584.59
11,272,804.44

60,002,034.80

30,169,500.02
10,208,850.05

Central Services & Technology 4,696,585.74 4,564,136.01
Maintenance 5,774,861.69 4,784,503.36
Transportation 4,157,425.10 3,984,438.06
Interest on Long-Term Debt 92,302.08 123,965.62
Business Type 1,307,488.31 1,204,488.37

Total Expense

62,661,051.95

55,039,881.49

Disposal of Capital Assests (Net) (2,432.00) (12,741.00)
Change in Net Position 3,879,650.64 4,949,412.31
Net Position - July 1, 22,329,986.34 32,228,974.03

Net Position - June 30, $26,209,636.98 $37,178,386.34

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and
grants offsetting those services.

Also, as previously noted, the information for FY2014 has not been restated to reflect the effect of
the District's implementation of GASB 68 and the related pension liability. Both revenues and
expenses increased mainly as a result of the district recognizing a larger on-behalf TPAF
contribution as a revenue and as an expense based upon the State’s Actuarial report
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NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
HUNTERDON COUNTY, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
UNAUDITED

Sources of Revenue for Fiscal Year 2015

In the District Wide Financial Statements, the District’s total revenue for the 2014-2015 school year
was $66,543,134.59 as reflected in Table 3 below. Property taxes accounted for 71.90 percent of
the total revenue with the other 28.10 percent consisting of federal & state aid, charges for service,

operating grants & contributions, and miscellaneous sources. Table 3 below summarizes these
revenues for FY2015 and FY2014.

TABLE 3
DISTRICT-WIDE REVENUES
FY2015 FY2014
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
Property Taxes $47,841,907.00 71.90% $47.606,384.00 79.34%
Federal & State Grants not Restricted 7,235,272.18 10.87% 6,022,238.35 10.04%
Miscellaneous Income 260,919.34 0.39% 759,875.93 1.27%
Charges for Services 1,237,696.36 1.86% 1,019,976.42 1.70%
Operating Grants & Contributions 9,967,339.71 14.98% 4,593,560.10 7.66%
$66,543,134.59 100.00% $60,002,034.80 100.00%
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NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
HUNTERDON COUNTY, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
UNAUDITED

Expenses for the Fiscal Year 2015

The total expenditures for the 2014-2015 fiscal year for all programs and services were
$62,661,051.95. Table 4 below summarizes these program costs.

TABLE 4
DISTRICT-WIDE EXPENSES
FY2015 FY2014
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
Instruction $35,359,584.59 56.43% $30,169,500.02 54.81%
Pupils and Instructional Staff 11,272,804.44 17.99% 10,208,850.05 18.55%
General & School Administation,
Central Services & Technology 4,696,585.74 7.50% 4,564,136.01 8.29%
Maintenance 5,774,861.69 9.22% 4,784,503.36 8.69%
Transportation 4.157,425.10 6.63% 3,984,438.06 7.24%
Interest on Long-Term Debt 92,302.08 0.15% 123,965.62 0.23%
Business Type 1,307,488.31 2.09% 1,204,488.37 2.19%
$62,661,051.95 100.00% $55,039,881.49 100.00%

The District's expenses are predominantly related to instructing, providing services and
transporting students, grades kindergarten through eight, which accounts for 79 percent of the total
District costs. Administrative and business expenses account for the costs of the Office of the
Superintendent of Schools, the Business Office, and the Principal's Offices in both school
buildings. Maintenance and operations account for the costs of keeping the school buildings and
grounds safe, clean and in good operating condition, and includes all the utility costs related to the
school facilities. Other costs include interest on long-term debt and the costs of the business-type
activities of the proprietary funds. It is important to note that depreciation expense on capital assets
is included in expenses for the year under this accounting reporting model; expenses therefore
include $1,421,085.00 for depreciation.
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NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
HUNTERDON COUNTY, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Governmental Activities

UNAUDITED

Table 5 presents the net cost (total cost less fees generated by the activities and
intergovernmental aid provided for specific programs) of District activities. The net cost shows the

financial burden placed on the District’s taxpayers and the state by each of these functions.

Instruction
Pupils and Instructional Staff

General & School Administation,

Central Services & Technology
Maintenance

Transportation

Interest on Long-Term Debt
Business Type

TABLE 5
NET COST OF SERVICE
Total Cost of Total Cost of Net Cost of Net Cost of

Services Services Services Services

FY2015 FY2014 FY2015 FY2014
$35,359,584.59 $30,169,500.02 28,188,274.23 27,506,578.10
11,272,804.44 10,208,850.05 9,008,469.74 9,008,683.02
4,696,585.74 4,564,136.01 4,284 845.43 4.226,850.78
5,774,861.69 4,784 ,503.36 5,774,861.69 4,530,654.81
4,157,425.10 3,984,438.06 4,157,425.10 3,937,601.61
92,302.08 123,965.62 92,302.08 123,965.62
1,307,488.31 1,204,488.37 (50,162.39) 92,011.03
$62,661,051.95 $55,039,881.49 $51,456,015.88 49,426,344 .97

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The District's budget is prepared according to New Jersey Statutes and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of modified accrual and encumbrance accounting.

Over the course of the year, the Board of Education approved revisions to the general fund budget
as needed. These budget amendments were necessary for the following reasons:

¢ Realign budgeted salary accounts as needed to account for staff transfers to various

programs.

e Realigned appropriations in accordance with the prescribed chart of accounts as modified

by the comprehensive educational improvement and financing act.

e Transferred from unexpended appropriations to purchase teaching materials and
equipment to meet various program needs.
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Capital Assets

During the fiscal year 2014-2015 the District’s capital acquisitions exceeded depreciation expense,
therefore capital assets net of depreciation increased by $1,090,870. Table 6 reflects the
comparative balances of capital assets net of depreciation. The detail of the changes in capital
assets is reflected in Note 3 to the financial statements.

TABLE 6
CAPITAL ASSETS (NET OF DEPRECIATION) AT JUNE 30,
FY2015 FY2014
Land $372,120.00 $372,120.00
Construction in Progress 4,971,437.00 2,967,225.00
Site Improvements 1,128,430.00 1,062,237.00
Building Improvements 18,780,305.00 19,821,167.00
Machinery Equipment 1,910,160.00 1,848,833.00

$27,162,452.00 $26,071,582.00

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2015, the District had $24,112,369.99 of outstanding long-term debt, consisting of
bonds payable, compensated absences, capital leases and net pension liability. The District will
continue to pay down its debt, as the obligations are due. Table 7 reflects the comparison of
outstanding debt for the past two fiscal years. More information of the District's long-term debt is
presented in Note 4 to the financial statements.

TABLE 7
LONG-TERM DEBT AT JUNE 30,
FY2015 FY2014
Bonds Payable $1,475,000.00 $2,160,000.00
Capital Leases Payable 6,159,090.82 6,682,900.31
Compensated Absences 2,347 ,976.17 2,450,632.18
Net Pension Liability 14,130,303.00

$24,112,369.99 $11,293,532.49
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For the Future

The North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District encompassing 174 square miles is a
community of children and adults living, learning, and working together across twelve
municipalities. In addition to fostering students' intellectual growth, we focus on enhancing their
self-esteem and developing strong personal character.

The many programs we offer, in and beyond the classroom, provide opportunities for children to
explore new interests, gain self-confidence, socialize, and learn from one another. Coupled with an
outstanding instructional program, these stimulating experiences support and nurture the total
child. Our commitment to staff development, high-quality instructional programs, enrichment
activities, and enhancing student self-esteem support our philosophy of educational excellence.
Our mission statement supports these endeavors:

The North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District, a district committed to innovation,
personal excellence, high achievement, and community partnership, provides all students with
personalized opportunities through a broad spectrum of exemplary educational experiences to
develop their fullest potential, to foster lifelong learning, and to become responsible citizens in a
continually changing society.

We actively involve the community in our schools. Parent advisory groups, guest speakers, Parent-
Teacher-Student Association, and booster clubs significantly elevate the level of educational
experiences we provide for our students. Many community members participated in the
development of a five-year Strategic plan in 2011. Community leaders have established
educational foundations for North Hunterdon High School and Voorhees High School.

The District's two high schools, with approximately 2,800 students, offer students in grades 9 — 12
a comprehensive educational program emphasizing college and career readiness.

An innovative district technology plan enhances our instructional program, facilitates and promotes
independent and cooperative learning and provides relevance to students' lives. As of 2014-2015,
all freshmen, sophomores and juniors were provided with a chromebook; this initiative was
expanded to all four grade levels in 2015-2016. With this deployment of chromebooks, our
technology program extends beyond the classroom and traditional school day.

The district provides a full range of special education programs and services. Multiple Disabled,
Learning/Language Disabilities, Behavior Disorders, and Autism self-contained classes are
provided throughout the district. Resource center programs at each school offer in-class support as
well as pull-out placement instruction. In addition, related services of speech, nursing, occupational
therapy, physical therapy, and teacher of the deaf are provided to students who require them.
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The Board of Education supports an exemplary professional development plan for its staff
members, including a mentoring program for pre-tenured teachers and administrators. New staff
members are required to attend a week of new teacher orientation and a two-year long induction
program. Ongoing professional development includes a series of staff workshops and curriculum
articulation with sending districts.

Contacting the School District’s Financial Management Office

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with a
general overview of the School District’s finances and to show the School District's accountability
for the money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional
information, contact Ms. Susan Press, School Business Administrator/Board Secretary, North
Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District, 1445 State Highway Rte. 31, Annandale, NJ
08801.
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' BIC FINCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements provide a financial overview of the District’s operations. These
financial statements present the financial position and operating results of all funds as of
June 30, 2015,
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' DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display information about the
District. These statements include the financial activities of the overall District, except for
fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal
activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities
of the District.
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NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Interfund receivable
Inventory
Capital assets:

Non Depreciable

Depreciable - Net

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES:

Related to pension
LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Accrued interest on bonds
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year
Due beyond one year
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES:

Related to pension

NET POSITION:

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Capital projects fund
Debt service fund (deficit)
Other purposes
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net position

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015

EXHIBIT "A-1"

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE

ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
$23,692,051.39 $127,811.00 $23,819,862.39
1,709,545.33 1,709,545.33
1,808,598.10 4,442.02 1,813,040.12
41,035.51 41,035.51
18,222.03 18,222.03
5,343,557.00 5,343,557.00
21,670,439.00 148,456.00 21,818,895.00
54,265,226.33 298,931.05 54,564,157.38
1,058,942.00 1,058,942.00
1,003,497 .48 7,316.79 1,010,814.27
3,036,665.50 19,286.56 3,055,952.06
33,802.08 33,802.08
1,254,062.23 1,254,062.23
22,858,307.76 22,858,307.76
28,186,335.05 26,603.35 28,212,938.40
1,200,524.00 1,200,524.00
19,379,905.18 148,456.00 19,528,361.18
3,661,062.12 3,561,062.12
(33,800.89) (33,800.89)
19,022,927.42 19,022,927.42
(15,992,784.55) 123,871.70 (15,868,912.85)
$25,937,309.28 $272,327.70 $26,209,636.98
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~ MAJOR FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The individual fund financial statements and schedules present more detailed information for the
individual fund in a format that segregates information by the fund type.
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ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash, Capital Reserve

Cash, Maintenance Reserve

Due from other funds

Receivables from other governments

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances;
Restricted for:
Excess surplus - Current Year
Excess surplus - Designated for Subsequent
Years Expenditure
Maintenance reserve account
Capital reserve account
Debt service
Assigned to:
Encumbrances
Capital projects
Unassigned:
General fund

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

SHEET #1
NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015
SPECIAL CAPITAL DEBT TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECTS SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS
20,993,691.50 § 187,1567.30 2,511,201.40 § 119 §  23,692,051.39
847,245.52 847,245.52
862,299.81 862,299.81
41,035.51 41,035.51
665,824.31 18,795.21 1,123,978.58 1,808,598.10
23,410,096.65 $ 205,952.51 363517998 § 119 % 27,251,230.33
312,970.62 $ 1,800.00 74117.86 $ $ 388,888.48
2,832,512.99 204,152.51 3,036,665.50
3,145,483.61 205,952.51 74,117.86 3,425,653.98
7,400,771.09 7,400,771.09
8,912,611.00 8,912,611.00
862,299.81 862,299.81
1,847,245.52 1,847,245.52
1.19 1.19
482,078.99 482,078.99
3,561,062.12 3,661,062.12
759,606.63 759,606.63
20,264,613.04 3,561,062.12 1.19 23,825,676.35
23,410,096.65 $ 205,952.51 § 3,635179.98 § 1.19 27,251,230.33

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT "B-1"

SHEET #2
NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015
Total Fund Balances (Brought Forward) $23,825,676.35

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement
of Net Position (A-1) are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Cost of Assets
Accumulated Depreciation

Long term liabilities, including bonds payable, and other related
amounts that are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.

Compensated Absences

Bonds Payable

Net Pension Liability

Capital Leases (Net of Unexpended Proceeds)

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of resources are applicable
to future periods and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Pensions:
Deferred Outflows
Pension related
Employer Contribution related to pensions

Deferred Inflows:
Pension related

Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.
Accounts Payable - Pension Related
Accrued Interest Payable

Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$62,498,839.00
(35,484,843.00)

(2,347,976.17)
(1,475,000.00)
(14,130,303.00)
(6,159,090.82)

444,333.00
614,609.00

(614,609.00)
(33,802.08)

27,013,996.00

(24,112,369.99)

1,058,942.00

(1,200,524.00)

(648,411.08)

$25,937,309.28




REVENUES:
Local sources:
Local tax levy
Tuition
Interest on maintenance reserve
Interest on capital reserve
Miscellaneous

Total revenues - local sources

State sources
Federal sources

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current expense:
Regular instruction
Special instruction
Other Instruction

Support services:
Tuition
Student & instruction related services
General administrative services
School administrative services
Central services

Administration information technology
Plant operations and maintenance
Pupil transportation

Allocated benefits
Unallocated benefits

Debt Service:
Principal

Interest
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in/(out)

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances. July 1, 2014

Fund balances, June 30, 2015

NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

EXHIBIT "B-2"

SPECIAL CAPITAL DEBT TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECTS SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS
$ 47,048,907.00 $ $ 793,000.00 $ 47,841,907.00
51,772.33 $51,772.33
3,054.09 3,054.09
3,484.19 3,484.19
200,329.10 29,606.65 229,935.75
47,307,546.71 29,606.65 793,000.00 48,130,153.36
10,598.625.31 $1,123,978.58 11,722,603.89
566,373.01 566,373.01
57,906,172.02 595 979.66 1,123,978.58 793,000.00 60,419,130.26
15,681,295.60 15,681,295.60
3.510,857.41 14,430.98 3,525,288.39
2,670,577.87 2,670,577.87
2,610,348.88 2,610,348.88
4,975,779.19 580,363.08 5,556,142.27
947,115.44 947,115.44
1,213,434.12 1.213,434.12
703,379.18 703,379.18
582,167.33 582,167.33
4,494,612.20 4,494,612.20
3.917,819.63 3,917,819.63
12,444 .00 12,444.00
12,700,829.72 12,700,829.72
685,000.00 685,000.00
108,000.00 108.000.00
737,958.37 1,185.60 2,809,946 .46 3,549,090.43
54,758,618.94 595,979.66 2,809,946.46 793,000.00 58,957 545.06
3,147 ,553.08 (1,685,967.88) 1.461,685.20
(5,247.,030.00) 5,247,030.00
(5,247,030.00) 5,247,030.00
(2,099,476.92) 3,561,062.12 1,461,685.20
22,364,089.96 -0- 1.19 22,364,091.15
$ 20,264613.04 $ -0- 3,561,062.12 § $1.19 § $23,825,676.35

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (from B-2)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded

depreciation in the period
Depreciation expense

Capital outlays
Less:

Disposal of Assets, Net of Depreciation
Assets transferred from proprietary fund, net of depreciation

Capital outlays not capitalized

$3,5649,090.43

(2,432.00)
962.00

(1,064,603.43)

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the statement of net position and is not reported in the statement of activities.

Repayment of long-term debt is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the statement of net position and is not reported in the statement of activities.

Payment of capital lease payable

In the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt is accrued, regardless of
when due In governmental funds, interest is reported when due. The accrued interest

is an addition in the reconciliation.

District pension contributions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds when made.

However, they are reported as deferred outflows of resources in the Statement of Net Position because
the reported net pension liability is measured a year before the District's report date. Pension expense,
which is the change in the net pension liability adjusted for changes in deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions, is reported in the Statement of Activities.

District pension contributions
Less: Pension expense

In the statement of activities, certain expenses, e.g., compensated absences (vacations) are
measured by the amounts earned during the year. In governmental funds, however, expenditures
for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used (paid). When the earned
amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference is a reduction in the reconciliation (-); when the
paid amount exceeds the earned amount the difference is an addition to the reconciliation (+).

Decrease in Compensated Absences

Change in net position of governmental activities

EXHIBIT "B-3"

$1,461,585.20

(1,405,501.00)

2,483,017.00
685,000.00
523,809.49
15,697.92
622,175.00
(660,269.00)
(38,094.00)
102,656.01

$3,828,170.62

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT "B-4"

NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENAL ACTIVITIES

ENTERPRISE FUND INTERNAL
MAJOR FUND SERVICE
FOOD SERVICE FUND FUND
ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $127.811.00
Accounts receivable - other $36,035.54
Intergovernmental Receivables:
State : 367.86
Federal 4,074.16
Inventories ‘ 18,222.03
Total current assets 150,475.05 36,035.54
Noncurrent assets:
Furniture, machinery & equipment 494,315.00
Less accumulated depreciation (345,859.00)
Total noncurrent assets 148,456.00
Total assets 298,931.05 36.035.54
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 7,316.79
Interfund payable 36,035.54
Unearned revenue 19,286.56
Total current liabilities 26,603.35 26,035.54
Total liabilities 26,603.35 $36,035.54
NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets 148,456.00
Unrestricted 123,871.70
Total net position $272,327.70

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT "B-5"

NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES  GOVERNMENAL ACTIVITIES

ENTERPRISE FUND INTERNAL
MAJOR FUND SERVICE
FOOD SERVICE FUND FUND
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services:
Daily sales $1,219,904 .47
Other sales 17,791.89
Transportation fees from other LEA's within the state $757,463 77
Total operating revenues ) 1,237,696.36 757,463.77
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries 358,239.55
Employee benefits 249,490.53
Other purchase service (Administrative Expenses) 51,334.55
General supplies 71,441.18
Depreciation 15,584.00
Cost of sales 561,398.50
Contracted services - (between home and school) - jcint transportation 757,463.77
Total operating expenses 1,307,488.31 $757,463.77
Operating income (loss) (69,791.95)
NONOPERATING REVENUES:
State Sources:
State School Lunch Program 5,284.42
Federal Sources:
National Schocl Lunch Program 76,595.58
Nationai School Breakfast Program 7,956.30
National food distribution ccmmodities 30,118.04
Disposal of capital asset (net) (962.00)
Interest on Investments 2,279.63
Total nonoperating revenues 121,271.97
Change in net position 51,480.02
Total net position - beginning 220,847.68
Total net position - ending $272,327.70

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT "B-6"

NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENAL ACTIVITIES

ENTERPRISE FUND INTERNAL
MAJOR FUND SERVICE
FOOD SERVICE FUND FUND
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers $1,256,202.91 $753,105.06
Payments to food service company (1,209,081.23)
Payments to employee benefits (40,854.88)
Payments to suppliers (11,838.25) (757,463.77)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities) (5,571.45) (4,358.71)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
State Sources 4,989.76
Federal Sources 82,538.34
Interfund Activity (40,889.68) 4,358.71
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 46,638.42 4,358.71
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchases of capital assets (29,900.00)
Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activitie (29,900.00)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest 2,279.63
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities 2,279.63
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 13,446.60
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2014 114,364.40
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2015 $127,811.00
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss) (69,791.95)
Adjustments to reconciling operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation 15,584.00
Federal commodities 30,118.04
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in inventories (8,084.89)
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable 7,316.79
Increase (Decrease) in deferred revenue 19,286.56
64,220.50
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities ($5,571.45)

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT "B-7"

NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

PRIVATE PURPOSE UNEMPLOYMENT
AWARD FUND COMPENSATION
SCHOLARSHIP FUND TRUST FUND AGENCY FUNDS
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $32,566.02 $402,850.97 $797,010.70
Accounts receivable - other 287.50
Intrafunds receivable 11,656.15
Total assets $32,566.02 $414,507.12 $797,298.20
LIABILITIES:
Interfunds Payable $4,999.97
Intrafunds Payable 11,656.15
Payroll deductions and withholdings 258,924.06
Scholarship reserve - Summer Pay 739.94
Payable to student groups 520,978.08
Total liabilities 797,298.20
NET POSITION:
Held in trust for unemployment
claims 414,507.12
Held in trust for scholarships 32,566.02
Total net position $32,566.02 $414,507.12 $-0-

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT "B-8"

NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

PRIVATE PURPOSE UNEMPLOYMENT
AWARD FUND COMPENSATION
SCHOLARSHIP FUND TRUST FUND
ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Plan Members $148,796.40
Other , $2,418.56
Total contributions 2,418.56 148,796.40
Investment earnings:
Interest 146.12 1,158.47
Net investment earnings 146.12 1,158.47
Total additions 2,564.68 149,954 .87
DEDUCTIONS:
Scholarships awarded 5,470.98
Unemployment claims 113,366.98
Total deductions 5,470.98 113,366.98
Change in net position (2,906.30) 36,587.89
Net position - beginning of the year 35,472.32 377,919.23
Net position - end of the year $32,566.02 $414,507.12

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTE 1:

North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School
District (the District) have been prepared in conformity with U.S. Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The more significant of the District's accounting policies are described
below.

Reporting Entity

The North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District is a Type Il District
located in Hunterdon County, New Jersey. The School District is an
instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established to function as an
educational institution. The Board consists of elected officials and is responsible
for the fiscal control of the District. A Superintendent is appointed by the Board
and is responsible for the administrative control of the District.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity,
are set forth in Statement No. 39 of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board entitled “Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component
Units” (GASB 39) as codified in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards.

Organizations that are legally separate, tax-exempt entities and that meet all of
the following criteria should be discretely presented as component units. These
criteria are:

1. The economic resources received or held by the separate organization
are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary
government.

2. The primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the
ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources of the
organization.

3. The economic resources received or held by an individual organization
that the specific primary government, or its component units, is entitled to,
or has the ability to otherwise access, are significant to that primary
government.

The combined financial statements include all funds of the District over which the
Board exercises operating control. The operations of the District include two
senior high schools located in the North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High
School District. There were no additional entities required to be included in the
reporting entity under the criteria as described above, in the current fiscal year.
Furthermore, the District is not includable in any other reporting entity on the
basis of such criteria.
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NOTE 1:

North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Presentation

The District’'s basic financial statements consist of District-wide statements,
including a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of Activities, and fund
financial statements which provide a more detailed level of financial information.

District-Wide Statements: The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities display information about the District as a whole. These statements
include the financial activities of the overall District, except for fiduciary activities.
Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal
activities. These statements distinguish generally between the governmental and
business-type activity of the District. Governmental activities generally are
financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange
transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees
charged to external parties.

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial condition of the
governmental and business-type activity of the District at fiscal year end. The
Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for the business-type activity of the District and for each
function of the District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that
are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) fees and
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and
(b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirement of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues, inciuding all taxes, are presented as generally revenues. The
comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to
which each governmental function or business segment is self-financing or draws
from the general revenues of the District.

Fund Financial Statements: During the fiscal year, the District segregates
transactions related to certain District functions or activities in separate funds in
order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. The
fund financial statements provide information about the District’'s funds, including
its fiduciary funds. Separate statements are presented for each fund category -
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. The New Jersey Department of
Education (NJDOE) has elected to require New Jersey districts to treat each
governmental fund as a major fund in accordance with the option noted in GASB
No. 34, paragraph 76. The NJDOE believes that the presentation of all funds as
major is important for public interest and to promote consistency among district
financial reporting modeis.
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NOTE 1:

North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Governmental Fund Types

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the
District. It is used to account for all financial resources except those
required to be accounted for in another fund. Included are certain
expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or noninstructional
equipment which are classified in the capital outlay subfund.

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the
District includes budgeted capital outlay in this fund. Generally accepted
accounting principles as they pertain to governmental entities state that
general fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for
long-lived improvements as long as the resources in such cases are
derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues. Resources for budgeted
capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey
Aid, district taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those
that result in the acquisition of or additions to fixed assets for land,
existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of buildings,
additions to or remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in
equipment. These resources can be transferred from and to current
expense by Board resolution; in certain instances approval by the County
Superintendent of Schools may also be required.

Special Revenue Fund - The special revenue fund is used to account for
the proceeds of specific revenue sources from State and Federal
Government (other than those for major capital projects, debt service or
proprietary funds) and local appropriations that are restricted or
committed to expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Fund - Capital project funds are used to account for
and report financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned
to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction
of capital facilities and other capital assets. Capital projects funds
exclude those types of capital related outflows financed by proprietary
funds or for assets that will be held in trust for individuals, private
organizations, or other governments.

Debt Service Fund - Debt service funds are used to account for and
report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to
expenditure for principal and interest.
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NOTE 1:

North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Proprietary Fund

Enterprise Fund - The enterprise fund accounts for all revenues and
expenses pertaining to cafeteria operations. The food service fund is
utilized to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises. The stated intent is that
the cost (i.e. expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of
providing goods or services to the students on a continuing basis are
financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Depreciation of all exhaustive fixed assets used by proprietary funds is
charged as an expense against their operations.  Accumulated
depreciation is reported on proprietary fund balance sheets. Depreciation
has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Food Service Fund:

Equipment 12 Years
Light Trucks and Vehicles 4 Years
Heavy Trucks and Vehicles 6 Years

Internal Service Fund - The Internal Service Fund has been established
to account for the financing of transportation services provided by the
District for use by various other districts within Hunterdon County, as well
as for the District itself. Services are provided on a cost-reimbursement
basis.

Fiduciary Fund Types

Agency Funds —~ The agency funds are used to account for assets held
by the district on behalf of others and are custodial in nature. The agency
funds included in this category are as follows:

Unemployment Compensation Insurance Trust Fund - A trust fund
used to account for assets to finance the costs of unemployment benefits.
Since the Board has adopted the direct reimbursement method, the
District is under obligation to appropriate sufficient funds out of its general
fund and hold them in trust for this purpose.

Payroll and Student Activities Funds (Agency) - These are agency
funds used to account for the assets that the District holds on behalf of
others as their agent. Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not
involve measurement of resuits of operations.
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NOTE 1:

North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fiduciary Funds

Private Purpose Trust Funds - A trust fund used to account for assets
donated by individuals that will provide for the payment of scholarships to
district students.

Basis of Accounting — Measurement Feocus

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial
records and reported on the financial statements.

Districtwide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements: The
Districtwide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Differences in the accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the
recegnition of revenue, the reccrding of deferred revenue, and in the
presentation of expenses versus expenditures. Ad Val Orem (Property) Taxes
are susceptible to accrual as under New Jersey State Statute a municipality is
required to remit to its school district the entire balance of taxes in the amount
voted upon or certified, prior to the end of the school year. The District records
the entire approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year,
since the revenue is both measurabie and available.

The District is entitled to receive monies under the established payment schedule
and the unpaid amount is considered to be an “accounts receivable”. Revenue
from grants, entitiements, arid donations are recognized in the fiscal year in
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported
using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when
measurable and available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transactions
can be determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and
compensated abserices, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they
have matured. General capitai asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under
capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

All governmental and business type activities and enterprise funds of the District
follow FAGB Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30,
1989, Accounting Research Bulleting, unless those pronouncements confiict with
GASE pronouncementis.
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NOTE 1:

North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

BudgetslBudgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the
general, special revenue, and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to
the county office. In accordance with P.L. 2011, c. 202, which became effective
January 17, 2012, the District elected to move the School Board election to the
date of the November general election thereby eliminating the vote on the annual
base budget unless required by the mandated State budget CAP. The legal level
of budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line
item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as
established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C.
6A:23-2.2(f)1. Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at
the line item level. .All budget amendments and transfers must be approved by
School Board resolution.  Budget amendments during the year ended June 30,
2015 totaled $3,568,044.00, representing the Board resolution to transfer funds
from the Capital Reserve Fund.

All budget amounts presented in the accompanying supplementary information
reflect the original budget and the amended budget (which have been adjusted
for legally authorized revisions of the annual budgets during the year).

Appropriations, except remaining project appropriations, encumbrances, and
unexpended grant appropriations, lapse at the end of each fiscal year. The
capital projects fund presents the remaining project appropriations compared to
current year expenditures.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a
management control device during the fiscal year. For governmental funds,
there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting
and generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) with the exception of the
legally mandated (NJSA 18A:22-44.2) revenue recognition of deferred State Aid
payments for budgetary purposes only and the accounting treatment of
encumbrances in the special revenue fund as described below. Encumbrance
accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in
the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year
end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant
accounting budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis
does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the
presentation of GAAP basis financial records.
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NOTE 1:

North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Encumbrance Accounting

Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion
of the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental funds
other than the special revenue fund are reported as assigned fund balances at
fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather
commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund and capital projects fund for
which the District has received advances are reflected in the balance sheet as
deferred revenues at fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An
entry will be made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the
appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance
amount as of the current fiscal year end.

Interfunds

Interfund receivables and payables arise from transactions between particular
funds and are considered short term in duration. The interfund transactions are
recorded by all funds affected in the period in which the transactions are
executed and are part of the district's available spendable resources.

Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

Inventories of materials and supplies held for consumption in the governmental
funds are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase and year end
balances are not reported in the financial statements.

Inventories of food and/or supplies in the food service fund are recorded at cost
on a first-in, first-out basis or, in the case of Food Distribution Commodities, at
stated value which approximates market.

Prepaid expenses which benefit future period, other than those recorded in the
enterprise fund, are recorded as an expenditure in the year of purchase.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets

The District has an established formal system of accounting for its capital assets.
Capital Assets used for governmental purposes, which include land, buildings and
improvements and furniture and equipment, are only reported in the district- wide
financial statements. The District generally defines capital assets as assets with
an initial cost of $2,000.00 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of one
year. Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost. Donated
capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date received.
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated in the district-wide statements using the straight-
line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated

Asset Class Useful Lives
School Buildings 50
Building Improvements 20
Electrical/Plumbing 30
Vehicles 8
Office & Computer Equipment 5-10
Instructional Equipment 10
Grounds Equipment 15
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Compensated Absences

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick
leave) as directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 16 (GASB 16), “Accounting for Compensated Absences.” A liability for
compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and
employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in
accordance with the District’'s personnel policy. Upon termination, employees
are paid for accrued vacation. The District’'s policy permits employees to
accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the full amount to subsequent
years. Upon retirement employees shall be paid by the District for the unused
sick leave in accordance with the District's agreements with the various
employee unions. :

The liability for compensated absences was accrued using the termination
payment method, whereby the liability is calculated based on the amount of sick
leave and vacation days that are expected to become eligible for payment upon
termination. The District estimates its accrued compensated absences liability
based on the accumulated sick and vacation days at the balance sheet date by
those employees who are currently eligible to receive termination payments.

For the district-wide statements, the current portion is the amount estimated to be
used in the following year. For the governmental funds in the fund financial
statements, a liability is reported only for to the extent of the amount actually due
at year end as a result of employee resignations/retirements. Compensated
absences are a reconciling item between the fund level and district-wide
presentations.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue in the special revenue and capital projects funds represents
funds which have been received but not yet earned. A corresponding accounts
receivable has also been established for any open encumbrances at year end
which is an allowable practice under generally accepted accounting principles.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported on the
District-wide financial statements. In general, governmental fund payables and
accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full from
current financial resources are reported as obligations of the funds. However,
contractually required pension contributions and compensated absences that are
paid from governmental funds are reported as liabilities on the fund financial
statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current
year. Long term debt is recognized as a liability on the fund financial statements
when due.

Net Position

GASB 63 provides guidance for reporting net position in the statement of
financial position and related disclosures. In compliance with GASB 63, the
Statement of Net Assets has been renamed the Statement of Net Position. Net
Position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net investment
in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
reduced by the outstanding balance of any borrowing used for the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the
enabling legislation adopted by the District or through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments. The
District’s policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred
for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net positions are
available.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fund Balance Restrictions

The District implemented GASB Statement 54, “Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions”. This statement modifies fund balance
reporting and clarifies fund type definitions. This new Statement aims to enhance
the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund balance
clarifications that can be applied more consistently.

Under the new standard, in the fund financial statements, governmental funds
report the following classifications of fund balance:

Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
not spendable in form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact.

Restricted — includes amounts restricted by external sources (creditors, laws of
other governments, etc.) or by constitutional provision or enabling legislation. The
District reports the Capital Reserve, Maintenance Reserve and Excess Surplus
as Restricted Fund Balance.

Committed — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes.
Committed fund balance is reported pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board
of Education, the District's highest level of decision making authority.
Commitments may be modified or rescinded only through resolutions approved
by the Board of Education. The District reports amounts Designated for
Subsequent Year's Expenditures as Committed Fund Balance.

Assigned - includes amounts that the District intends to use for a specific
purpose, but do not meet the definition of restricted or committed fund balance.
Under the District’'s policy, amounts may be assigned by the Business
Administrator. The District reports Year End Encumbrances as Assigned Fund
Balance.

Unassigned — includes amounts that have not been assigned to other funds or
restricted, committed or assigned to a specific purpose within the General Fund.
The District reports all amounts that meet the unrestricted General Fund Balance
Policy described below as unassigned:

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted fund balance is available, the District considers restricted funds to
have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed,
assigned, or unassigned fund balance are available, the District considers
amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds,
and finally unassigned funds, as needed.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fund Balance Restrictions (Continued)

The general fund is the only fund that will report a negative unassigned fund
balance. For all other governmental funds the amount of a residual deficit would
be classified as unassigned.

Revenues — Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and
receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the
exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the
fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available.
Available means the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or
are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities
of the current fiscal year. For the District, available means within sixty days of
the fiscal year end. :

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly
giving equal value in return, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and
donations. On the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in
the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements,
and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements
have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which
specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the fiscal year
when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the District must
provide local resources to be used for a specific purpose; and expenditure
requirements, in which the resources are provided to the District on a
reimbursement basis. On the modified accrual basis, revenue from
nonexchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered

both measurable and available at fiscal year end: property taxes available as an
advance, interest, and tuition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the
primary activity of the enterprise fund. For the District, these revenues are sales
in the Enterprise Funds. Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to
provide the service that is the primary activity of the enterprise fund.

Allocation of Indirect Expenses

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities.
Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect
expenses are allocated to functions but are reported separately in the Statement
of Activities. Employee benefits, including the employer’'s share of social
security, workers compensation, and medical and dental benefits, were allocated
based on salaries of the program. Depreciation expense, where practicable, is
specifically identified by function and is included in the indirect expense column
of the Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense that could not be attributed
to a specific function is considered an indirect expense and is reported
separately on the Statement of Activities.

Extraordinary and Special Items

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and
infrequent of cccurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within
control of management and are either unusual in nature or infrequent in
occurrence. Neither of these types of transactions occurred during the fiscal
year.

Manadgement Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make assumptions that affect the amounts reported as revenue
and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. These estimates may
differ from actual results.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions

In fiscal year 2015, the District implemented GASB 68. This Statement amends
GASB Statement No. 27. It improves accounting and financial reporting by state
and local governments for pensions. It also improves information provided by
state and local government employers about financial support for pensions that is
provided by other entities. This Statement results from a comprehensive review
of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for
pensions with regard to providing decision useful information, supporting
assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional
transparency. This Statement replaces the requirement of Statement No. 27,
Accounting for Pension by State and Local Governmental Employers, as well as
the requirements of Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to
pensions that are provided through pension plans administered as trusts or
equivalent arrangements that meet certain criteria. The requirements of
Statements 27 and 50 remain applicable for pensions that are not covered by the
scope of this Statement. This statement is effective for periods beginning after
June 15, 2014.

The District has also implemented GASB Statement 71, Pension Transition for
Contributions made Subsequent to the Measurement Date-an amendment to
GASB No. 68. The objective of this Statement is to address an issue regarding
application of the transition provisions of Statement No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions. The issue relates to amounts associated with
contributions, if any, made by a state or local government employer or
nonemployer contributing entity to a defined benefit pension plan after the
measurement date of the government's beginning net pension liability. Statement
68 requires a state or local government employer (or nonemployer contributing
entity in a special funding situation) to recognize a net pension liability measured
as of a date (the measurement date) no earlier than the end of its prior fiscal
year. If a state or local government employer or nonemployer contributing entity
makes a contribution to a defined benefit pension plan between the
measurement date of the reported net pension liability and the end of the
government's reporting period, Statement 68 requires that the government
recognize its contribution as a deferred outflow of resources.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions (continued)

In addition, Statement 68 requires recognition of deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources for changes in the net pension liability of a
state or local government employer or nonemployer contributing entity that arise
from other types of events. At transition to Statement 68, if it is not practical for
an employer or nonemployer contributing entity to determine the amounts of all
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions, paragraph 137 of Statement 68 required that beginning balances for
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources not be reported.
Consequently, if it is not practical to determine the amounts of all deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions,
contributions made after the measurement date of the beginning net pension
liability could not have been reported as deferred outflows of resources at
transition. This could have resulted in a significant understatement of an
employer or nonemployer contributing entity's beginning net position and
expense in the initial period of implementation.

This Statement amends paragraph 137 of Statement 68 to require that, at
transition, a government recognize a beginning deferred outflow of resources for
its pension contributions, if any, made subsequent to the measurement date of
the beginning net pension liability. Statement 68, as amended, continues to
require that beginning balances for other deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions be reported at transition only if
it is practical to determine all such amounts.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Currently, the District has
only one item that qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred amounts from
deferred amounts related to pensions.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has one item that qualify
in this category, deferred amounts related to pension.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The District considers petty cash, change funds, cash in banks, deposits in the
New Jersey Cash Management Fund, and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less as cash and cash equivalents. Investments
are stated at cost, which approximates market.

Deposits

New Jersey statutes permit the deposit of public funds in public depositories
which are located in New Jersey and which meet the requirements of the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA requires a bank
that accepts public funds to be a public depository. A public depository is defined
as a state banrk, a national bank, or a savings bank, which is located in the State
of New Jersey, the deposits of which are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation. The statutes also require public depositories to maintain
collateral for deposits of public funds that exceed certain insurance limits. Each
depository participating in the GUDPA system must pledge collateral equal to 5%
of the average amount of its public deposits and 100% of the average amount of
its public funds in excess of 75% of its capital funds. No collateral is required for
amounts covered by FDIC insurance. The collateral which may be pledged to
support these deposits includes obligations of the State and federal
governments, insured securities and other collateral approved by the
Department. When the capital position of the depository deteriorates or the
depository takes an unusually large amount of public deposits, the Department of
Banking and Insurance requires additional collateral to be pledged. Under
(GUDPA), if a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the
collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount of the
deposits to the governmental unit.
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NOTE 2: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Deposits (Continued)

As of June 30, 2015, cash and cash equivalents of the District consisted of the

following:
Bank Reconciling Items Reconciled
Fund Type Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Governmental $27,219,173.30 $5,871.22 $1,823,447.80 $25,401,596.72
Proprietary 127,966.45 155.45 127,811.00
Fiduciary 1,863,853.73 25.59 631,451.63 1,232,427 .69
$29,210,993.48 $5,896.81 $2,455,054.88 $26,761,835.41

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the
event of a bank failure, the deposits may not be returned. The District does not
have a specific deposit policy for custodial credit risk other than those policies
that adhere to the requirements of statute. As of June 30, 2015, based upon the
coverage provided by FDIC and NJ GUDPA, no amount of the bank balance was
exposed to custodial credit risk. Of the cash on balance in the bank 280,836.94
was covered by Federal Depository Insurance and $28,930,156.54 was covered
by NJ GUDPA. The New Jersey Cash Management Fund is an investment pool
and is not insured by either FDIC or GUDPA.

Investments

The types of investments which may be purchased by the District are strictly
limited by the express authority of the N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37 Education,
Administration of School Districts. Permitted investments include any of the
following type of securities:

1. Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations
guaranteed by the United States of America;

2. Government money market mutual funds which are purchased from an
investment company or investment trust which is registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission under the “Investment Company
Act of 1940,” 15 U.S.C. 80a-1 et seq., and operated in accordance with
17 C.F.R. § 270.2a-7 and which portfolio is limited to U.S. Government
securities that meet the definition of an eligible security pursuant to 17
C.F.R. § 270.2a-7 and repurchase agreements that are collateralized by
such U.S. Government securities in which direct investment may be made
pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37. These funds
are also required to be rated by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Investments (Continued)

3.

Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has
issued in accordance with an act of Congress, which security has a
maturity date not greater than 397 days from the date of purchase,
provided that such obligation bears a fixed rate of interest not dependent
on any index or other external factor.

Bonds or other obligations of the Local Unit or bonds or other obligations
of school districts of which the Local Unit is a part or within which the
school district is located.

Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date not more than 397
days from date of purchase, approved by the Division of Investment of the
Department of Treasury for investment by School Districts.

Local government investment pools that are fully invested in U.S.
Government securities that meet the definition of eligible security
pursuant to 17 C.F.R. § 270a-7 and repurchase agreements that are
collateralized by such U.S. Government securities in which direct
investment may be made pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of N.J.S.A.
18A:20-37. This type of investment is also required to be rated in the
highest category by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund
established pursuant to section 1 of P.L. 1977, ¢.281 (C. 52:18A-90.4); or

Agreements for the repurchase of fuily collateralized securities if:

a. the underlying securities are permitted investments pursuant to
paragraphs (1) and (3) of this subsection;

b. the custody cf collateral is transferred to a third party;
c. the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days;

d. the underlying securities are purchased through a public depository as
defined in section 1 of P.L. 1970, ¢.236 (C. 17:19-41); and;

®

a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody and security
of collateral is executed.

As of June 30, 2015, the District had no outstanding investments. Based upon
the limitations set forth by New Jersey Statutes 40A:5-15.1 and existing
investment practices of the Investment Council of the New Jersey Cash
Management Fund, the District is generally not exposed to credit risks and
interest rate risks for its investments, nor is it exposed to foreign currency risk for
its deposits and investments.
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NOTE 3: CHANGE IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Transfers Additions Retirements Balance
Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 3 372,120.00 $ 372,120.00
Ccenstruction in Progress 2,967,225.00 $ 2,004,212.00 4,971,437.00
Total Capital assets not being depreciated 3,339,345.00 2,004,212.00 5,343,557.00
Land Improvements $ 2.972,156.00 §$ 159,200.00 $ 3,131,356.00
Building and Building Improvements 44,208,520.00 31,585.00 44,240,105.00
Machinery & Equipment 9,463,495.00 79,478.00 289,490.00 48,642.00 9,783,821.00
Totals as historical cost 56,644,171.00 79,478.00 480,275.00 48,642.00 57,155,282.00
Total Gross assets (Memo only) $ 59,983516.00 $ 79,478.00 2.484,487.00 48,642.00 $ 62,498,835.00
Less: Accumulated Depreciation for:
Land Improvements $  (1,909,919.00) $ (93,007.00) $  (2,002,926.00)
Building and Building Improvements (24,387,353.00) (1,072,447.00) (25,459,800.00)
Machinery & Equipment (7,749,764.00) (78,516.00) (240,047.00) (46.210.00) (8,022,117.00)
Total depreciation (34,047,036.00) (78,516.00) (1,405,501.00) (46,210.00) (35,484,843.00;
Total Capital assets being depreciated
net of accumulated depreciation 22,597,135.00 962.00 (925,226.00) 2,432.00 21,670,439.00
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 25936,480.00 $ 962.00 1,078,986.00 2,43200 $ 27,01 3,996.00_
Business-type activities:
Equipment $ 543,895.00 $ (79,478.00) 29,900.00 $ 494,317 .90
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (408,793.00) 78,516.00 (15,584.00) (345,861.00)
Proprietary fund capital assets, net $ 135,102.00  §_ (962.00) 14,316.00 $ 148,456.00
Total Capital Assets - All Funds, net $__ 2607158200 $ 1,093,302.00 243200 $§ 27,162,452.00

58



NOTE 3:

NOTE 4:

North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015

CHANGE IN CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental expenses as follows:

instruction:
Regular instruction $ 515,262.79
Special instruction 115,361.27
Other Instruction 110,046.00

Support Services:

Student & Instruction Related Services 222,004.30
School Administrative Services 39,871.54
General Administrative Services 31,120.73
Central Services 23,111.94
Administration information technology 19,129.11
Plant Operations & Maintenance 184,012.91
Pupil Transportation 145,580.41

$ 1,405,501.00

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Bonds are issued by the District pursuant to the provisions of Title 18A
Education, of the New Jersey Statutes and are required to be approved by the
voters of the municipality through referendum. The proceeds of bonds are
recorded in the Capital Projects Fund and are restricted to the use for which they
were approved in the bond referendum. All bonds are retired in annual
instaliments within the statutory period of usefulness.

School Bonds issued by the District are entitled to and benefit from the provision
of the New Jersey School Board Reserve Act P.L. 1980 c.72. Basically, funds
are held by the State of New Jersey within its State Fund for the Support of Free
Public Schools as a school bond reserve pledged by law to secure payment of
principal and interest due on such bonds in the event of the inability of the issuer
to make payments.
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The following is a summary of changes in liabilities that effect other long-term
obligations for the year ended June 30, 2015:

Capital Compensated Net
Bonds Leases Absences Pension
Payable Payable Payable Liability Total

Balance June 30,2014 § 2,160,000.00 §$ 6,682,900.31 $ 2,450,632.18 $ 14,848,400.00 $ 26,141,932.49

Additions 11,862.55 11,862.55
2,160,000.00 6,682,900.31 2,462,494.73 14,848,400.00 26,153,795.04
Deletions 685,000.00 523,809.49 114,518.56 718,097.00 2,041,425.05

Balance June 30,2015  $§  1,475,000.00 $ 6,159,090.82 $ 2,347,976.17 $ 14,130,303.00 $ 24,112,369.99

Amounts due within
one year $ 720,000.00 $ 534,062.23 $ -0- $ -0- 1,254,062.23

Bonds Payable

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of June 30, 2015,
with interest payments on issued debt, are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 720,000.00 $ 73,750.00 $ 793,750.00
2017 755,000.00 37,750.00 792.750.00

$ 1,475,000.00 $ 111,500.00 $  1,586,500.00
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Capital Leases Payable

The District has previously entered into a lease agreement for energy savings
equipment in the amount of $7,782,467.12. The capital lease was for a term of
15 years at an interest rate of 3.89%. This lease was refinanced in fiscal year
2013 with an interest rate of 1.94% and the same remaining term. The following
is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments under the capital lease and
the present value of the net minimum lease payments at June 30, 2015:

Year Amount
2016 $ 649,866.00
2017 649,866.00
2018 649,866.00
2019 649,866.00
2020 649,866.00
2021-2026 3,574,263.00
Total minimum lease payments 6,823,593.00
Less: Amounts representing interest (664,502.18)
Present value of net minimum lease payment $ 6,159.090.82
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Under New Jersey Statutes the District may incur debt in an amount not to
exceed 3% of the averaged equalized valuation basis of real property. For the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the District borrowing capacity under N.J.S.
18A:24-19 would be as follows:

Equalized
Valuation of
Year Real Property
2014 8,032,597,774
2013 7,994,966,831
2012 8,172,301,207
24,199,865,812
Average equalized valuation of property 8,066,621,937
School borrowing margin
(3% of $8,066,621,937) 241,998,658
Net school debt as of June 30, 2015 1,475,000
School borrowing power available $240,523,658
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PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans - All required employees of the District are covered by
either the Public Employees’ Retirement System or the Teachers’ Pension and
Annuity Fund which have been established by state statute and are administered
by the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (Division). According to the
State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both Systems will be
assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The
Division issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial
statements and required supplementary information for the Public Employees
Retirement System and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports
may be obtained by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box
295, Trenton, N.J., 08625 or on line at www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) - The Teachers' Pension and
Annuity Fund was established as of January 1, 1955, under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide retirement benefits, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan with a special funding
situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the
State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system’s other related non-
contributing employers. Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers
or members of the professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners,
and employees of the Department of Education who have titles that are
unclassified, professional and certified.

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) - The Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS) was established as of January 1, 1955 under the
provision of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide retirement, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Public Employees’ Retirement
System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership is mandatory for
substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the employee is not
required to be a member of another state-administered retirement system or
other state or local jurisdiction.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) - The Defined Contribution
Retirement Program (DCRP) was established under the provision of Chapter 92,
P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007 to provide coverage to elected and certain
appointed officials, effective July 1, 2007. Membership is mandatory for such
individuals with vesting occurring after one year of membership.
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Significant Legislation

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, c. 78 enacted certain changes in the
operations and benefit provisions of the TPAF and the PERS systems.

Pension Plan Design Changes

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, c. 78, new members of TPAF and PERS,
hired on or after June 28, 2011, will need 30 years of creditable service and have
attained the age of 65 for receipt of the early retirement benefit without a
reduction of 1/4 of 1% for each month that the member is under age 65. New
members will be eligible for a service retirement benefit at age 65.

Funding Changes

Under the new legislation, the methodology for calculating the unfunded accrued
liability payment portion of the employer’'s annual pension contribution to the
PERS, and TPAF. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) will be
amortized for each plan over an open-ended 30 year period and paid in level
dollars. Beginning with the July 1, 2019 actuarial valuation (July 1, 2018 for
PFRS), the UAAL will be amortized over a closed 30 year period until the
remaining period reaches 20, when the amortization period will revert to an open-
ended 20 year period.

COLA Suspension

The payment of automatic cost-of-living adjustment to current and future retirees
and beneficiaries are suspended untii reactivated as permitted by this law.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions - The vesting and benefit provisions of PERS
are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and 43.3B, and N.J.S.A. 18A:6C for TPAF. All
benefits vest after ten years of service, except for post-retirement healthcare
benefits that vest after 25 years of service.

Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three
years of service credit, become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the
contributions. In the case of death before retirement, members’ beneficiaries are
entitled to full interest credited to the members’ accounts.

64



NOTE 5:

North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015

PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Contribution Requirements - The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A
and N.J.S.A. 18:66, and requires contributions by active members and
contributing employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be
amended by State of New Jersey legislation.

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, c. 78 provides for increases in the employee
contribution rates: from 5.5% to 6.5% plus an additional 1% phased-in over 7
years beginning in the first year, meaning after 12 months, after the law's
effective date for TPAF and PERS.

Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both
TPAF and PERS. The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for
cost-of-living adjustments, noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement
medical premiums. Under current statute the District is a non-contributing
employer of TPAF (i.e. the State of New Jersey makes the employer contribution
on behalf of public school districts.)

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS

Year Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension
June 30 Cost (APC) APC Contributed Obligation
2015 $622,175.00 100.00% $622,175.00
2014 $655,814.89 100.00% $655,814.89
2013 $624,823.00 100.00% $624,823.00
Three-Year Trend Information for TPAF (Paid on-behalf of the District)
Year Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension
June 30 Cost (APC) APC Contributed Obligation
2015 $1,131,347.00 100.00% $1,131,347.00
2014 $867,196.00 100.00% $867,196.00
2013 $1,393,122.00 100.00% $1,393,122.00

Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66, the State of New Jersey
reimbursed the District $1,561,156.31 during the year ended June 30, 2015 for
the employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF members, as
calculated on their base salaries. This amount has been included in the basic
financial statements, and the combining and individual fund and account group
statements and schedules as a revenue and expenditure in accordance with
GASB 68.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

At June 30, 2015, the District reported a liability of $14,130,303.00 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of
the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
projected contributions of all participating school districts, actuarially determined.
At June 30, 2014, the District's proportion was 0.0754713592 percent, which was

a decrease of 0.002220196 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30,
2013.

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the District recognized pension expense of
$660,269.00 At June 30, 2015, the District reported deferred outflows of

resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PERS from the following
sources:

Deferred Deferred
Inflow of Outflow of
Resources Resources

Changes of assumptions $444,333.00

Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments $842,089.00

Changes in proportion and differences between District
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 358,435.00

District contributions subsequent to the measurement

date

614,609.00

$1,200,524.00 $1,058,942.00
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68

(Continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

The $614,609.00 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
resulting from school district contributions subsequent to the measurement date
(i.e. for the school year ending June 30, 2015, the plan measurement date is
June 30, 2014) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ended June 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended
June 30

2016
2017
2018
2019
Thereafter

Additional Information

Amount

($128,843.53)

($128,843.53)

($128,843.53)
$81,678.78
$35,938.66

Collective balances at June 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows

6/30/2014
Collective deferred outflows of resources $952,194,675
Collective deferred inflows of resources 1,479,224,662

Collective net pension liability

District's Proportion
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18,722,735,003

0.0754713592%

6/30/2013
Not Available

Not Available
19,111,986,911

0.0776915552%
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2014 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2013, which rolled forward to
June 30, 2014. The total pension liability for the July 1, 2013 measurement date
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2013. This actuarial
valuation used the following assumptions, applied to all periods in the
measurement.

Inflation 3.01 Percent

Salary Increases
2012-2021 2.15-4.40 Percent (based on age)
Thereafter 3.15-5.40 Percent (based on age)

Investment Rate of Return  7.90 Percent
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2013 valuation were based on
the results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2008 to June
30, 2011.

Mortality Rates

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female
Mortality Tables (setback one year for females) with adjustments for mortality
improvements from the base year of 2012 based on Projection Scale AA.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

Long-Term Rate of Return

in accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the
Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits,
the board of trustees and the actuaries. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of
return for each major asset class included in PERS's target asset allocation as of
June 30, 2014 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Cash 6.00% 0.80%
Core Bond 1.00% 2.49%
intermediate Term Bonds 11.20% 2.26%
Mortgages 2.50% 2.17%
High Yield Bonds 5.50% 4.82%
Inflation indexed Bonds 2.50% 3.51%
Broad U.S. Equities 25.90% 8.22%
Developed Foreign Markets 12.70% 8.12%
Emerging Market Equities 6.50% 9.91%
Private Equity 8.25% 13.02%
Hedge Funds/Absolute Returns 12.25% 4.92%
Real Estate (Property) 3.20% 5.80%
Commodities 2.50% 5.35%

100.00%
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(CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.39% and
5.55% as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. This single blended discount
rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments of 7.9%, and a municipal bond rate of 4.29% and 4.63% as of June
30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond
Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal
bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made based on the average of the last five
years of contributions made in relation to the last five years of recommended
contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current
plan members through 2033. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2033, and
the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date
in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the collective net pension liability to changes in the discount
rate.

The following presents the collective net pension liability of the participating
employers as of June 30, 2014 respectively, calculated using the discount rate as
disclosed above as well as what the collective net pension liability would be if it
was calculated using a discount rate that is 1 -percentage point lower or 1-
percentage-point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2014

1% At Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
4.39% 5.39% 6.39%
District's proportionate share
of the pension liability 17,776,402.00 14,130,303.00 11,068,507.00
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Pension plan fiduciary net position.

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Public
Employees Retirement System (PERS).

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required
to be funded by the State in accordance with N.J.S.A 18:66-33. Therefore, these
local participating employers are considered to be in a special funding situation
as defined by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State is treated as a nonemployer
contributing entity. Since the local participating employers do not contribute
directly to the plan (except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no
net pension liability or deferred outflows or inflows to report in the financial
statements of the local participating employers. However, the notes to the
financial statements of the local participating employers must disclose the portion
of the nonemployer contributing entities' total proportionate share of the net
pension liability that is associated with the local participating employer.

The portion of the TPAF Net Pension Liability that was associated with the
District recognized at June 30, 2015 was as follows:

Net Pension Liability:

Districts proportionate share -0-
State’s proportionate share
associated with the District $109,561,204

$109,561,204

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2013. The net pension liability associated with
the District was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating school districts and the State, actuarially determined. At June 30,
2014, the proportion of the TPAF net pension liability associated with the District
was .2049913484%.

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the District recognized on-behalf pension
expense and revenue of $5,895,421 for contributions provided by the State.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2014 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2013, which was rolled forward
to June 30, 2014. The total pension liability for the June 30, 2013 measurement
date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1 2013. This actuarial
valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the
measurement:

Inflation rate 2.50%

Salary increases:
2012-2021 Varies based on experience
Thereafter Varies based on experience

Investment rate of return 7.90%
Mortality rates

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Health Annuitant Mortality Table for
Males or Females, as appropriate, with adjustments for mortality improvements
based on Scale AA. Pre-retirement mortality improvements for active members
are projected using Scale AA from the base year of 2000 until the valuation date
plus 15 years to account for future mortality improvement. Post-retirement
mortality improvements for non-disabled annuitants are projected using Scale AA
from the base year of 2000 for males and 2003 for females until the valuation
date plus 7 years to account for future mortality improvement. The actuarial
assumptions used in the July 1, 2013 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2009 to June 30, 2012.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the
Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits,
the board of trustees and the actuaries. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of
return for each major asset class included in TPAF's target asset allocation as of
June 30, 2014 are summarized in the following table:
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(CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return (Continued)

Long-Term
Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Cash 6.00% 0.50%
Core Fixed Income 0.00% 2.19%
Core Bonds 1.00% 1.38%
Short-Term Bonds 0.00% 1.00%
Intermediate- Term Bonds 11.20% 2.60%
Long-Term Bonds 0.00% 3.23%
Mortgages 2.50% 2.84%
High Yield Bonds 5.50% 4.15%
Non-US Fixed Income 0.00% 1.41%
Inflation-Indexed Bonds 2.50% 1.30%
Broad US Equities 25.90% 5.88%
Large Cap US Equities 0.00% 5.62%
Mid cap US Equities 0.00% 6.39%
Small Cap US Equities 0.00% 7.39%
Developed Foreign Equities 12.70% 6.05%
Emerging Market Equities 6.50% 8.90%
Private Equity 8.25% 9.15%
Hedge Funds Absolute Return 12.25% 3.85%
Real Estate (Property) 3.20% 4.43%
Real Estate (REITS) 0.00% 5.58%
Commodities 2.50% 3.60%
Long Credit Bonds 0.00% 3.74%

100.00%
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4.68% and
4.95% as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. This single blended discount
rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments of 7.9%, and a municipal bond rate of 4.29% and 4.63% as of June
30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond
Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal
bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made based on the average of the last five
years. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current
plan members through 2027. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2027, and
the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date
in determining the total pension liability,

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

Because the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability is zero,
consideration of potential changes in the discount rate is not applicable to the
District.
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OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

For eligible retired employees, the School District participates in the State Health
Benefits Program (SHBP), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit
post-employment healthcare plan administered by the State of New Jersey
Division of Pensions and Benefits. SHBP was established in 1961 under
N.J.S.A. 52:14-17.25 et seq., to provide health benefits to State employees,
retirees, and their dependents. Rules governing the operation and administration
of the program are found in Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative
Code. SHBP provides medical, prescription drugs, mental health/substance
abuse, and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered
dependents.

The State Health Benefits Commission is the executive body established by
statute to be responsible for the operation of the SHBP. The State of New
Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information
for the SHBP. That report may be obtained by writing to: State of New Jersey
Division of Pensions and Benefits, P.O. Box 295, Trenton, NJ 08625-0295.

Chapter 384 of Public Laws 1987 and Chapter 6 of Public Laws 1990 required
Teachers’ Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and the Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS), respectively, to fund post-retirement medical
benefits for those State employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of
credited service or on state disability retirement. P.L. 2007, Chapter 103
amended the law to eliminate the funding of post-retirement medical benefits
through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate funds outside of the pension
plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired
State employees and retired educational employees. As of June 30, 2014, there
were 103,432 retirees eligible for post-retirement medical benefits, and the State
contributed $1.04 billion on their behalf. The cost of these benefits is funded
through contributions by the State in accordance with Chapter 62, P.L. 1994,
Funding of post-retirement medical premiums changed from a pre-funding basis
to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in fiscal year 1994.

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to Chapter 126, P.L. 1992,
which provides free health benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate
Benefit Program who retired from a board of education or county college with 25
years of service. The State paid $173.8 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for
18,122 eligible retired members in Fiscal Year 2014.
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OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

The State will set the contribution rate based on the annual required contribution
of the employers (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with
the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) of the plan over a
period not to exceed thirty years. The State’s contributions to the State Health
Benefits Program Fund for TPAF retirees’ post-retirement benefits on behalf of
the School District for the years ended June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were
$1,796,014, $1,421,875 and $1,575,268, respectively, which equaled the
required contributions for each year. The State’s contributions to the State
Health Benefits Program Fund for PERS retirees’ post-retirement benefits on
behalf of the School District was not determined or made available by the State
of New Jersey.

LITIGATION

The District’'s counsel advises that there is no litigation, pending litigation, claims,
contingent liabilities, unasserted claims or assessments or statutory violations
which involve the School District and which might materially affect the District's
financial position.

CONTINGENCIES

The Board receives financial assistance from the State of New Jersey and the
U.S. Government in the form of grants. Entitlement to the funds is generally
conditional upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreements
and applicable regulations, including the expenditure of the funds for eligible
purposes. The State and Federal grants received and expended in the 2014-
2015 fiscal year were subject to the U.S. OMB A-133 and New Jersey OMB
Circular 04-04 which mandates that grant revenues and expenditures be audited
in conjunction with the Board's annual audit. Findings and questioned costs, if
any, relative to federal and state financial assistance programs will be discussed
in the Single Audit Section, Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. In
addition, all grants and cost reimbursements are subject to financial and
compliance audits by the grantors. Further, the School Child Nutrition Program is
a recipient of federal reimbursements and is subject to certain related federal
regulations. These federal reimbursements are subject to subsequent audit and
interpretation by the New Jersey Department of Education. The District
management does not believe such an audit would result in material amounts of
disallowed costs.
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NOTE 10: RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage
to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and
natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance - The District maintains insurance coverage
covering each of those risks of loss. The administration believes such coverage
is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to the District. Settled
claims have not exceeded the insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal
years.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The District has elected
to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the
“‘Benefit Reimbursement Method”. Under this plan, the District is required to
reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its
former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed
quarterly for amounts due to the State. The table on the following page is a
summary of District contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the
State for benefits paid, and the ending balance of the District’s expendable trust
fund for the current and previous two years:

Fiscal Interest Amount Ending

Year Earnings Contributions Reimbursed Balance
2014-15 $ 1,15847 9 148,796.40 $ 113,366.98 $ 414,507.12
2013-14 1,160.53 64,171.47 22,886.01 377,919.23
2012-13 953.62 117,410.16 74,753.81 335,473.24
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COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g. unused vacation and sick
leave) as directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 16 (GASB 16), "Accounting for Compensated Absences". A liability for
compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and
employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in
accordance with the District's personnel policy. Upon termination, employees are
paid for accrued vacation. The District's policy permits employees to accumulate
unused sick leave and carry forward the amount to subsequent years. Upon
retirement, employees shall be paid by the District for the unused sick leave in
accordance with the Districts agreements with the various employee unions.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the governmental fund types
are recorded in the district - wide statement of net position. As of June 30, 2015,
a liability existed for compensated absences for governmental fund-types in the
district-wide Statement of Net Position of $2,347,976.17.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is
recorded within those funds as the benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30,
2015 no liability existed for compensated absences in the proprietary fund.

For additional descriptive information see Note 1, Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies.
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NOTE 12:

FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

General Fund — The table below reflects the District's Fund Balance at June 30,
2015 on both a GAAP (Exhibit B-1) and Budgetary (Exhibit C-1) basis including
the required adjustment related to the last state aid payment which under GAAP

is not recognized:

Budgetary GAAP
Basis Adjustment Basis
Restricted for:
Excess surplus:
Designated for subsequent
years expenditures $ 8,912,611.00 $ 8,912,611.00
Current year 7,400,771.09 7,400,771.09
Maintenance reserve 862,299.81 862,299.81
Capital reserve 1,847,245.52 1,847,245.52
Assigned to:
Encumbrances 482,078.99 482,078.99
Unassigned 1,296,644.63 (537,038.00) 759,606.63
$ 20,801,651.04 $ (5637,038.00) $ 20,264,613.04

Debt Service Fund — Of the $1.19 in Debt Service Fund fund balance at June
30, 2015, $1.19 is committed to debt service.
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NOTE 13:

North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015

CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

The Restricted Fund Balance - Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant
to N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, as amended. New Jersey school districts are required to
reserve General Fund fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did
not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their
subsequent years' budget.

General Fund Expenditures

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 $54,758,618.94
Add:
Transfer from Capital Outlay to Capital Projects Fund 1,708,386.00
Transfer from Capital Reserve to Capital Projects Fund 3,5638,644.00
Less:

On-behalf TPAF Pension and Social Security Reimbursement 4 488,517.31

Adjusted General Fund Expenditures $55,517,131.63
Excess Surplus Percentage 2.00%
2% of Adjusted 2014-15 General Fund Expenditures 1,110,342.63
Add: Allowable Adjustments 186,302.00
Maximum Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balance 1,296,644.63
Actual Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balance 8,697,415.72
Excess Surplus $7,400,771.09

Recapitulation of Excess Surplus, June 30, 2015:
Current Year $7,400,771.09

Prior Year - Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures 8,912,611.00

$16,313,382.09

Based on the above calculation, as of June 30, 2015, $8,912,611.00 is reported
as Restricted Fund Balance - Excess Surplus Designated for Subsequent Year’s
Expenditure and was required to be appropriated for property tax relief in the
2015-16 budget. $7,400,771.05 is reported as Restricted Fund Balance - Excess
Surplus and is required to be appropriated for property tax relief in the 2016-17
budget.
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NOTE 14:

NOTE 15:

North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

INTERFUND INTERFUND
FUND RECEIVABLE PAYABLE
General Fund $ 4103551 $
Internal Services Fund 36,035.54
Trust & Agency Funds 4,999.97
$ 4103551 $ 41,035.51

All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that
short-term loans were disbursed and payements between
the funds were made.

CAPITAL AND OTHER RESERVE ACCOUNTS

A capital reserve account was established by the District by the inclusion of
$1.00 in the 2000-2001 school year for the accumulation of funds for use as
capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve
account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is included in the
general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in
the district’'s approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of
the LRFP to the Department of Education, a district may increase the balance in
the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget
certified for taxes or by transfer by Board resolution at year end (June 1 to June
30) of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line item appropriations, or
both. A district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express
approval of the voters has been obtained by either a separate proposal at budget
time or by a special question at one of the four special election dates authorized
by N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-14.1(g), the balance in the
account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital
projects in its approved LRFP.
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NOTE 15:

NOTE 16:

North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015

CAPITAL AND OTHER RESERVE ACCOUNT (CONTINUED)

Capital Reserve Account

Beginning balance, July 1, 2014 $4,514,599.33
Budgeted increase in Capital Reserve $285,000.00
Per resolution 1,000,000.00
Interest earned 3,484.19
1,288,484.19
$5,803,083.52
Withdrawals
Transfer to Capital Outlay 417,194.00
Transfer to Capital Projects 3,5638,644.00
$3,955,838.00
Ending balance, June 30, 2015 $1,847,245 52
Maintenance Reserve Account
Beginning balance, July 1, 2014 $859,245.72
Increase in Maintenance Reserve:
Interest 3,054.09
Ending balance, June 30, 2015 $862,299.81

DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The District offers its employees a choice of the deferred compensation plans
created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) and 457. The
plans permit participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years.
Amounts deferred under the plans are not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. Since the Board
does not have any property or rights to the plan assets and no fiduciary
relationship exists between the District and the deferred compensation plan, the
plan assets are not included in the District’s financial statements as of June 30,
2015.
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NOTE 17:

NOTE 18:

NOTE 19:

North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015

INVENTORY
Inventory in the Food Service Fund at June 30, 2015 consisted of the following:

Food and Supplies $18,222.03

The value of Federal donated commodities as reflected on Schedule A (required
by the Single Audit Act amendments of 1996) is the difference between market
value and cost of the commodities at the date of purchase and has been included
as an item of non-operating revenue in the financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The District has evaluated subsequent events occurring after the financial
statement date through December 3, 2015 which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. The District has determined that there are
no material subsequent events needed to be disclosed.

RESTATEMENT

As stated in Note 6, in FY2015 the District implemented GASB68. As a result the
District's Net Position at June 30, 2014 was restated as follows:

Beginning Net Position 6/30/14 $36,957,538.66
Less:
Pension Liability (14,848.,400.00)

Beginning Net Assets 6/30/14 (as restated) $22,109,138.66
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NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION
NOTE TO RSI
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Note A - Explanation of difference between budgetary inflows and outflows and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

GENERAL
FUND

EXHIBIT "C-3"

SPECIAL
REVENUE
FUND

Sources/inflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue"
from the budgetary comparison schedule $57,907,579.02

Difference - budget to GAAP:

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that encumbrances
are recognized as expenditures, and the related revenue is recognized. N/A

The last State aid payment of the current year is recognized as revenue for budgetary purposes
and differs from GAAP which does not recognize this revenue until the
subsequent year when the State recognizes the related expense (GASB 33) (537,038.00)

The last State aid payment of the prior year is recognized as revenue under GAAP
when the State recognizes the related expense (GASB 33). (This revenue was recognized
during the previous fiscal year for budgetary purposes.) 535,631.00

$668,860.95

(72,881.29)

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds. $57,906,172.02

$595,979.66

Uses/outflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total expenditures" from the
budgetary comparison schedule. $54,758,618.94

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but

not received are reported in the year the order is placed for

budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are received

for financial reporting purposes. N/A

$668,860.95

(72,881.29)

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds $54,758,618.94

$595,979.66
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EXHIBIT "L-4"

NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSION (GASB 68)
NOTE TO RSI Il
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS)

Change in benefit terms
None
Change in assumptions

The calculation of the discount rate used to measure the total
pension liability is dependent upon the long-term expected rate

of return, and the municipal bond index rate. There was a change

in the municipal bond index rate from the prior measurement date
(4.63%) to the current measurement date (4.29%), resulting in a
change in the discount rate from 5.55% to 5.39%. This change in the
discount rate is considered to be a change in actuarial assumptions
under GASB No. 68.

TEACHERS PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND (TPAF)

Change in benefit terms
None
Change in assumptions

The calculation of the discount rate used to measure the total
pension liability is dependent upon the long-term expected rate

of return, and the municipal bond index rate. There was a change

in the municipal bond index rate from the prior measurement date
(4.63%) to the current measurement date (4.29%), resulting in a
change in the discount rate from 4.95% to 4.68%. This change in the
discount rate is considered to be a change in actuarial assumptions
under GASB No. 68.

103
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NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

EXHIBIT "F-1"

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
State Sources - SDA Grant
Capital Outlay
Capital Reserve
Total revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:
Purchased professional and technical services
Construction services
Other Expenditures

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

Fund Balance - budgetary basis
SDA Grant not recognized

Fund Balance - GAAP basis (B-1)
Expenditures - budgetary basis
Less: current year encumbrances

Expenditures - GAAP basis (B-2)

108

$3,411,152.00
1,708,386.00
3,538,644.00

8,658,182.00

$636,168.82
6,636,910.00
8,600.00

7,281,678.82

1,376,503.18

$1,376,503.18

$1,376,503.18
(2,287,173.42)

($910,670.24)

$7,281,678.82
4,471,732.36

$2,809,946.46
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r PROPRIETARY FUND DETAIL STATEMENTS

Proprietary funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises — where the intent of the District’s board is that the costs
of providing goods or services be financed through user charges.

Food Services Fund:  This fund provides for the operation of food services within the District.

Internal service funds are used to serve organizational units within the District or to serve other
governmental units.

THIS SECTION HAS ALREADY BEEN INCLUDED IN STATEMENTS

B-4,B-5 AND B-6
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FIDUCIARY FUND DETAIL

STATEMENTS A

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for funds received by the district for a specific
purpose:

Scholarship Fund: This private purpose trust is used to account for donations

received that are for student scholarship awards.

Unemployment Compensation Insurance Fund: This trust fund is used to pay
unemployment compensation claims as they arise.

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the district as an agent for another
party:

Student Activity Fund: This agency fund is used to account for student funds held at
the schools

Payroll Fund: This agency fund is used to account for the payroll transactions of the
school district.
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NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Plan Members
Other
Total contributions

Investment earnings:
Interest
Net investment earmings

Total additions
DEDUCTIONS:
Scholarships awarded
Unemployment claims

Total deductions

Change in net position

Net position - beginning of the year

Net position - end of the year

TRUST FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

EXHIBIT "H-2"

PRIVATE PURPOSE UNEMPLOYMENT
AWARD FUND COMPENSATION
SCHOLARSHIP FUND TRUST FUND TOTAL
$148,796.40 $148,796.40
$2,418.56 2,418.55
2,418.56 148,796.40 151,214.96
146.12 1,158.47 1,304.59
146.12 1,158.47 1,304.59
2,564.68 149,954.87 152,519.55
5,470.98 5,470.98
113,366.98 113,366.98
5,470.98 113,366.98 118,837.96
(2,906.30) 36,5687.89 33,681.59
35,472.32 377,919.23 413,391.55
$32,566.02 $414,507.12 $447,073.14
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NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

North Hunterdon High School Activities

North Hunterdon High School Athletics

Voorhees High School Activities

Voorhees High School Athletics

District-Wide Activity

Summer Camps

Total all schools

STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

EXHIBIT "H-3"

BALANCE CASH CASH BALANCE

JUNE 30, 2014 RECEIPTS DISBURSEMENTS JUNE 30, 2015
$343,008.62 $449,616.48 $448,911.69 $343,713.41
8.31 167,727.55 167,620.87 114.99
156,433.02 409,416.03 421,892.92 143,956.13
7.65 130,066.81 130,010.82 63.64
1,000.00 1,251.57 1,251.57 1,000.00
58,986.15 102,453.17 129,309.41 32,129.91
$559,443.75 $1,260,531.61 $1,298,997.28 $520,978.08
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NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable - other

Total assets

LIABILITIES:

Payroll deductions and withholdings
Net payroll

Wages payable - Summer Payroll
Scholarship Reserve - Summer Pay
interfunds payable

Intrafund payable

Total liabilities

PAYROLL AGENCY FUND

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

EXHIBIT "H-4"

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1, 2014 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS JUNE 30, 2015
$225,599.83 $32,080,429.69 $32,029,996.90 $276,032.62
287.50 287.50
$225,599.83 $32,080,717.19 $32,029,996.90 $276,320.12
$203,210.23 $15,010,726.31 $14,955,012.48 $258,924.06
16,565,519.80 16,565,519.80
502,941.86 502,941.86
645.72 731.86 637.64 739.94
5,000.00 797.36 797.39 4,999.97
16,743.88 5,087.73 11,656.15
$225,599.83 $32,080,717.19 $32,029,996.90 $276,320.12
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The long-term liability schedules are used to reflect the outstanding principal balances of the lonig-
term liabilities of the District. This includes obligations under serial bonds and capital leases.
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STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED)






NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION

Contents Page
Financial Trends:

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the district's financial performance and well being have changed over time. J-1to J-5

Revenue Capacity:

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the district's
most significant local revenue source, the property tax. J-6 to J-9

Debt Capacity:
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the district's current levels of outstanding debt and the district's ability to issue
additional debt in the future. J-10 to J-13

Demographic and Economic Information:

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the district's financial activities take place. J-14 to J-15

Operating Information:
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in the district's financial report relates to the services the district
provides and the activities it performs. J-16 to J-20

Sources

Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual
financial reports (CAFR) for the relevant year.



66 0EL Z¥¥'SLS G90LEELIBLE ¥5'6L1'68E°02S G£'20E'801°12S 95 zze'08e’ 128 ¥1'885'G/6'€CS 02629225628 €0'7.6'822 2€$ ¥€'986'62€ 22 86'9£9'60Z 928
(o8'8€C29€2) (85°569'826'}) (ze'987'682'}) {(o0'189°12r ) (ezyzi'o8e’) (05 ¥88°LEV 1) (Sz09r'105'V) (8v'¥81'980°}) (€2066782'G1) (58Z16'898'S1)
§8°29Z'LEE'9 €£'62L'€55'6 92'688'£9¢'8 82'559'1v8'8 8L°158'orY’'L 98'6ZL'vL0°0L 68'252'€58'SH 6€LET'LEL'LL 8£'562'988'0C $9'881°055'2Z
¥6'L0L'8LY LIS 06'922'886'LLS  09°0ZS'OLE'ELS £1°87€'889°ELS 19'565'€9Z'GL$ 8£'€69'88E'G1LS 95°Z€8'0L1'51$ ZL'/26'68L'9LS 69'189'82Z'L1$ 81°19€'825'61$

50'6/8'255% 00'526'G89% /5'618°9v6S 99'168'86.8 11°020°221$ ¥S'562°99/8 16'¥5Y'SZYS £9'191°ZIES 89'/¥8'022$ 0/°/ze'2lTS
50°156'26Y 0017559 15°€05° 5L 99°00'985 /1 °9v8'c8s ¥50,0°25C 16'6225C £9°9/2°091 89'SvL'58 0,1.8'€zL
00'826'65$ 00'¥8€'05$ 00'9LE'S6LS 00'46Y'2LZS 00°%LL'E6LS 00°59}'745$ 00'GLL'ELLS 00688'151$ 00°20L'SELS 00°95%'871$
6152688 71$ 59'68€'/26'81S /6'662Crv'6LS 69°011'60€'02S 6€ Z0E'€55°02S 0Z £0€'60Z°€2S €2°021'260'62S 0y'Z18'916'LES 99'8€1 60122 82 60€°/£6'G2S
(58'681'098'7) (85°9€2'¥95°2) (68'682'0v02) (221808007 (ov 026'€96'1) (¥0'556'689'1) (ZzovL'ess'V) (LLrov'ove) (1y'9e2'0/8°G1L) (55¥8.'266°S1)
§8°292'1€€'9 £€'6LL'€55'6 97'588'298'8 82'659'Ly8'8 81'158'9vY' L 98'62.'v20°0L 68'252'€58'GL 6E LET'LEL'LL 8€'562'988'0C $9'881'055°2Z
Y6'ELL'BLY LLS 06Zv8'L86'LLS 09%0Z'GLL'ELS  €LLEB'SLYELS 19'127'0L0°GL$ 8€'825'7Z8'71S 95°/59'266'71$ ZL'2Zr0'2e0'91S 69'6,5'€60°LL$ 81'606'6L£'61S

800¢ 7002 800 5002 10¢ 110¢ zroc £l0z 102 510z
@3nanvNn
ININOJWOD A8 NOILISOd 13N

WHra LIgIHX3

13141S1d TOOHOS HOIH TYNOI93d S3FHAO0OO0A-NOTHIINNAH HLEON

1-¥ 2INPayos ¥4vO 80Inog

uonisod }au Joulsip [BJo ]

(yoyap) pajouisaiun

pajpuIsay

sjosse jeyded ul JUaunsanul JaN
apm-pLIsig

uopisod Jau saniAnoe adA}-ssauisng (B30
pajoLysaiun
pajouisay
sjasse [eyided Ul JusWisSaAul JaN
saniaioe adA}-ssauisng

uonisod Jou SaljIANOE [BJUSWILLIBAOB [BjO |
(Hoyep) pajouysaiun
papLisey
sjasse |eyded uj Juswysaaul JaN
SONIAIIOE [BJUBWIUIBAOD)

128



(15°666'82¢ v¥S)

(€6°198'¥9Y 2pS)

(z£'500'L¥E'059)

(8v'621°128°05)

(18'66€'89Z 15)

(17 86 0£L'8Y)

(Sp'es0'62r LY)

(29601 '€12LS)

(L6'vve'ozy 6Y)

(88'65L0'95F°L5)

sTizeel
(92°02Ze'80¥ vt)

€0ZI9'LLL
(96°¢L1'925'LY)

(zo'199'252)
(0g'v¥€'880°08)

(ov'522'091)
(80'758'099°09)

(9L v8e'¥2)
(59'LLO'VYT'LS)

(€8¥SL 4 L)
(85°ers'8LL'8Y)

(zg'28€'€2)
(£6'599°60¥ ' L)

(90922 71L)
(L9'e£8'860'LS)

(€0'LL0'Z6)
(¥6'e€€ PEE BY)

6£'C9L 05
(£2'821'905'LS)

Sp'ZTr LS8 vs

6882811/ GS

91'80Z°591 9%

YE8ECLGL VS

Sv'68Y 2Z6'vS

Ly'8ye'9ZL'SS

89°9v¥'091'GS

v€'8€9°2L6'¥S

25'9¢5'€19'SS

2098050211

68°6vE'2S6 60'68€ 1501 ¥0'69€°8YL L cLelosel’l ZL'8eL'e0z’t 00CPG 26L°L 00/916LZL 85 ¥€5 60 L vellvTiLL 0/°069'/5¢L
6020814 1298116 csepLes C921.°0L £€°096'.6 295116 66'882'¢6 €L'616'G8 26'005'26 PEYSE6LL

08'2v5'088S 22661 '¥56S 25'G2Z'090'LS 16'5€2'990'1S 61°L/1'G0LLS 8€'68€00L LS 10'8.E'GZL LS S¥'610°£00°'LS Zv'9/6'6L0'L 9€'969'/E2'L
962/0668¢ Ov'Evy 099y 2L '6e8 90§ Lz6zeyloe €elseslLe 4¥'908'826'€ 8962 L¥6'E 9/'€04028'¢ 81650 10G¥ £€°68€° /986
96'CL0'668°€S Ob'er'099'vS CL'BEB'9L0SS Lzsezvioes £E16E6LL'ES 1¥'908'826'€S 89'6/Z'L¥6'cS 9/'€01'028'€S 8L'650°L0G ¥ 1£68€°/¥8'6

96°L2h 081 6¥S

28 0699/1 €58

87'€12'906'95$

28'29€°225'65S

92'688°061 9SS

88'98'958'€GS

£1°005'685 2GS

L0872 GZL 958

6Y188'6€0'G5S

66'150'199'29

9'820°¢48

ov'eLL B6E6

90 0€0° 10V L

£5'882°46C )

8zces et

€8'962'60C L

25vSSeve’L

v901890C 4

/£°88Y'¥0T' L

1£'88Y'/0€')

¥9'820'¢/8

ov'ell6es

90°0€0'L0Y L

£G'88C'L62L

8z'zes’LeT’t

£€8°962'602 L

G ¥SS'ereL

79018902 L

££'88Y ¥0T L

L£'88Y'L0€'L

2€'€6£'20€ 8

9€/16'9€22s

Cr'€81°501 5§

6C6.0G/C %S

86 29E'€96 ¥S

G0'0SS'Z¥9'2S

L9'GY6 9re LS

LE°/E6'8L6'VS

y9€95 £5¢'1.98

C1'€6£°568°€5S

65'899'95 £€9°C6L LS 8¢ 0v6'9Y ¥60.2°0S sgeel sy -
£¢'861°00¢ STYSL'L8T 82°0€Z'L9C Z1'695 9l

€0'6¥1'25S Yyl L9S SL'ees'ess /6'695'€/8 10'296'SLL G.818'S6L 00'S.¥'SLL G9'9L0°LSL z9'696'eCh §0'20€'28
YeTISTLL 6€°90¢€'L08 G9'€98'€L0't €6'765'¥50' L 92262680 £6'9r5026 STslzeye'L 86'6cozZeL’L L9'2pT'569'L 96'008'€€9'L
85/652¢6'C EYACYRAVATAS NS FAZ R LG'GGP'vo8'e GE'6£6'998' ¢00L9'LSS e 85055 ves'e €€'06L'€90 ¥ 90'8EY ¥86'€ oL'gzriSty
LE'0556EY'9 9/'726'918'9 8€'€£8'G86'0 Ly Ov8'El6 9 26°9/6'25¢€'9 Zr'168'296'S €0°092'625'S 98'C9C’L8L'9 9€'€0S ¥8L'Y 69'1L98'v/L°G
B8S8YSYYE L ¥0'€29'258'L ¥9'885°268'1L 88'09%'009'L L2°L10°209'L 8T yyrolelL le0lL'eve’lL 920886251 £5'18v'6€9'L 0202y 0461
88'85¥'6EY | ¥6'L51'669'L 86°00/°2.¢€L 9§GLT LveL 8L'BLLYET L §G'999'L0LL 69°LEE1G0'L 66'092 LET'L L8'Liv'6zeL 85'P9E'ZEO'L
STLYL'1199 87826869 Py 10e28L L 8L€CB'SLL L 6¥'65¢°£60'8 0z'880Liz'8 €7 0v0'e6Y L 0L'1z8'6e8L 91'€89'099'/ 95'65¥'299'8
€¥'8L5'960 ¢ ¢8L/0°€0L'C 09'9pL'1L9GC SLOvY'I8Y'T L9€L8'6L9C 81'8£8/99C cl'lez'oo8'e CE'B696ELT 68'091'8v5'C 88'87€0L9°C
oglelseee 66'LYY'8YY'C 8/°1/T%S8¢C ¥6629€.6C £5'Lv6'88Z°C ST 209'890°¢ 19'0/¥'620°E S96L0vYLe Le808'veoe 12685°¢sTy
€909 vEE Y §L'GyL8EL'S £89rE L6y SP'9€6'050'G 2T 1L96'LEL'S L6'2L0'06E'S £8'898'255'9 LL256'VvE6'S Lecleeee’s 12'250'696'G

28'70L'560'61L3

|

©|
o
S
&

L# 133HS
W& T LIFIHX3

L2'G80'veET 0TS

00z

G6'€8.'1C6°0CS

)
=]
o
«

66'691L 841028

600C

Ly'e68'Er8'6LS

|

[
o
«

1G°09V'v9T'6LS

69'6£8'C6G8LS

Q3IIaNYNN

NOILISOd 13N NI SIONVHD

98'204'6/£°028

LOI¥1SIA TOOHDS HOIH TYNOID3Y SI3HIOOA-NOQYIINNH HISON

LE6LLPYLLES

<
I
«

L1°9¥6'0¥1'6ZS

asuadxa Jau apIM-OLISIP B0
samAnoe adAy-ssauisng
SBIIANDE [BIUBLILIBAOLD)
ANNIAFH/FSNIIXT) 13N

sanuanal welboud jousip [e30]
senusiss weiboid ssnianoe adAy ssauisng (230
suoinquiuod pue syuesb Bunesado
201AI8S POO4
s@oIAIBs Joy sableyn
sanianoe adA)-ssatiisng

senuanel weiboid senianoe [eyuslwUIBA0b [Bj0 ]
suonnqUILod pue sjuelb Buesad)
s@0IM8S Jo) sabliey)

SBllIAOR [BJUSWILIBACD)

SANNIAIE NVHOOEd

sasuadxa joUIsIp (210 |

asuadxa saniAnoe adAj-ssauishq |e10 ]
201AI188 POOH

:saliApoe adA)-ssauisng

sesuadxs senIAOE [BJUBWLIBA0D |B10 ]

sjooyos |esdg

uoledaidsp paiesojeun

1g8p wial-buoy Lo 1saieiyl
ABojouysa L "ojuj ‘UIUPY/SBDIAIES [BIUSD)
$80IAJ8S UoneLOdSUR JUSPMS
oUBUSIUIRW pUE SuoneIsdo juRld
SBOIAIBS BANBASILIWPE [00UDS
$80IAIBS BANRASIUIWPE [BJBUBE)
SB2IAIBS Pale|a) UONONIISUI § JUBPMIS

uononJIsUl I8YI0
uoneonpa [erads
JejnBay
uononisuj
SBRIAIOR [BJUSWILIBA0D
SASNIIXT

129



82'850 ¥£0'SS 9912292178 88'808'G/.S 18281 '61.S 220202228 81°9L25¥9CS 9v'980°/¥5 SS £8'8¥€'902S LETLY BYE 7S 79059 6/8'€S
0¥'0£0°9€ G6'/85'8EL /57687097 (16226'L1L) (6v'128'12) (egv8L01) (ZG°08L°0v¢) (ree6zell) (56°€LE716) Z008Y'LS
88'/20'866' LLEEL'8E0'Y LEPLE'PLS zL0LL 298 LL168'evT 18'000'959'2 €0°/98'/88'S L1Tro'eL8'T 92'92.'0¥0'S z90.1'828'€
6/'/50'€9¢ 6Y 65'€85 179'LS 0Z7189LL'LS 6ZZTLEOPS LS €09l 067 LS 65 PLLG/ELS 16'6€1'9/6'2S 0G'857'616'€S 82 LSL'GLEYS 25999'G£€'55
(6g062°¢r) 265/6'92 8G'655°€LS 6y LyETL 19216 0z 0.6 (soeee/LE) 2.286 80/69 €9/lEL
G608 26'5/6'9C 65822181 6 /bETL
(00°002'6LE) - (00'z96)
(00°000'2S) 00°/2€'2eE 19Ti8'T 0206 $6'90€'C 2,286 80269 £96/2C
¥9 8YE 90 6 19'/09719°LG 19'852'€09°09 08'796'225'15 Q€ £06'/87'1S 6E VYL v/ELS 9625662 €5 8/ 5/7'8L6ES 02'090'S/E%S 68'8YE PEE G5
18'6/0€L6 6€'€96'¢68 05 €59'€85 08'796Z0% 25'508'90€ 0967981 L0'€Z6°9pE 69'€9.°0Z¢ G8'8/L 65 126€9'85C
00°002'6L€ - 00296
0000025 (00 L2e°288)
(£0°505'26L) (00°GLY) (r90LE'y) (00'68¢'8) (00 ¥8%'251) (zLi8L'LLp) (00'L¥2L'Zh) (oozey')
£8'7V6 195G 8Z'/98'/€L'9 8L°068'LLED 00/10'865'9 8 Y8ELLT'S 6L/18'96L°G S6'0£6'960°0 LZ'0er'see’L GE'BET'ZTO'Y 8L2/25€Z L
00°€z.'882 00'€ZL 562 00'555'G6. 00'0+2°008 00'668'€08 00Z£€'052 00'62¥'98. 00'G.p'282 009.¥'262 00'000'€62
00'G09'060 S 00'¥5L'68L €vS 00266'9EY €S 00'88L'LZL'EYS 00'68L°0LL'S¥S 00 ¥0§ 642 6% 00'886'G68'GY 00'886'668'GY 00'806'¢L8'9r 00°£06'870° LY
5002 7002 8002 6002 oroz 1oz zroz £10e vioz gioz
g31IanvyNn
S13SSVY I3N NI SIONVHO
LOIMISIa TOOHOS HOH TYNOIDIY STIHEOOA-NOGYIINNH HLIHON
ZHI33HS

W2 LISIHX3

2V 3INPaYdS ¥4vYD 8dinog

10UISIP B30 1
saiiAnoe edA)-sssuisng
SSNIAICE [RJUSWILIBN0D

NOILISOd 13N NI 3ONYAD

BpIM-JOLISIP [B10 |

salAnoe adAy-ssauisng |ejo)
sjesse |eyideo jo jesodsiq
sjesse |eydeo jo Jajsues]
SWOdU| SNOBUE|BISIN
(3no) ut sisysuel

:seniAoe adAj-ssauisng

SSIAIOR [BIUSWUIBAOD |20 |

BLODUI SNOBUER|IBISIN

sjasse |ended jo ysjsuel]

pajjeoued ssjgensdsy

sjasse |endeo jo jesodsiq

SUOINGLIUOD pUB SjueID)

B0IAJDS 18P JO) psiAs| SSXE |

18U ‘sesodind |ejauab Joj paina| saxe) Auadoid
SalIAlIO. [BIJUSIUIBAOS)

NOILISOd 13N NI
S3IONVHO ¥3HLO ANV SINNIATY TVE3INID

130



¥1'96€8L$ 6£°05Z'L$ 68052 1% €L052'1$ 61'01LG°0/5'LS 8'895 0/6% 28'895'046% 8C'8.9'vCc$ 6L'1LS LE'€90'195 €%
¥8'269'85 ZLeenioge
160 120 43 Sv 0 61'€6£'8C 610 610 610 6L'1S 6L'1S
11°66€81% 896vC L% 89677 L% 89 6VC L8 0F'698'CES L £98950/6$ £9'895°026% G2'G86'G9Z$
0C'85¢ 6%

2906z 9ee'8$

BLLEGYBOLLS

18°02.°20C0L%

B8V GG yEC 0L

LZ'cey 2re 8%

LE9EY LITLLS

22856 PFG OLs

G6'v69'coE'8L$

96 680 ¥9€'22$

Y0'€L9'r9T 0%

L5968 69 L

L1 ¥Ge998'9%

9002

W0 LIIHX3

08'covcoc't

6£'8C1 26V 0L$

9L'vG9'98C L

11'990'916'8%

12'202780°L

22'€55062'6%

or'Zes Cle

G/'096'629'L8

0l0¢

2e189°¢L9
98 CvS 6v9
€LClTv68'6%

CL'EPeY0S
£6088'8./¢
9L'GeL'L99'6LS

NYNA

a3

€€069'2.G
€lLe8y Lce
6Y'C95 69891 ¢

SANNS T7INIWNHEIACD - S3ONVIVE ANNS

LOIMLSIAT00HOS HOH TYNOID3Y STIHIOOA-NOTEIINAH HIION

9/°/9C'GL5
L0'820'ce8
6L'v6.°GE60CS

<
o
N

£9909'65/
66'8.0'28Y
Cr'LTB'TZ06Le

GL0¢

L-g 8inpPsyds ¥4vD 8oinog

spunyj |ejusLiuIanob JBYio jie [eyo L

puny syoefoid [ended
:paubissy
pun} 8o1AJ8s 198(
punj sjosfoud eude)
paNILWLOD
panlasay
Spun4 [BIUSWUIBA0D JBYIO I

puny [essusb g0

paubisseun

paubissy

pajoLIsay
pun4 |essuss)

131



%99 | %251 %bpL %8y} %Ch L %051 %ES'L %L %LY'L %EY |
8y ¥91'851G$ CTYELLYEES (2€'5€87266°2S) 98'€E02ELS (zg'1o1€zes) €17100'520°28 10°€25'L2€'SS 6L°Gr8TLL LS T6'L1LSL9ES 02685 19Y'1$
0000025 £0°660'56€ (00°2ze2Ee) 0072/8792¢C 21 er98sly 00616 2LE SEEY09LE
0000025 (00°Lze'2ee)
(590e6'4)
2066056 002.8'2L92°C ZLTro8sL'y 006.6'LLE 00'V46'LLE
8¥'¥91'90L'S SL'GE0'9V6'T (££'805'529'2) 98'¢e0°zeL (zg'to1'cze) (£8'0.8'261) 68°088'895 61'998 V6L L5v19'662°C 02'685' 19yt
2L 95Tyl By 68/86'152 €5 292LP¥0E LS SLLLGEV8'YS 56929 PEY'SS €4018'%05 65 G8'GL/'86Y 95 LY ¥68'7LY LG 9¥ 911716565 90'675'256'85
97 €2.'80¢8 9Z'€21 062 05755022 94012052 9290571 00622 €02 00'5.7981 00627 29t 00G/y €L 00000801
00°000°08Y 00°000'60§ 00000'525 00000055 00'000'0€9 00°000'5£S 00'000'009 00'000°629 00°000'559 00'000'689
1261928t 8675808 9,°¢20'9¢
8158¢e°11Z
£9'99¢ L6 £0°0Z8'956 15796'0L0C 710565 ¥9719'959 87'989'L9¥'E §9'6LL'5eT'S YT LrE168T 08'0¥£'899'L €7°060'6¥5°€
65'899'95 €9Z61°1S 8€°076'9% 7604205 §geeL'y
25°985'92Z'S 6L€¥6'195°G 66722505y 9€'GE0'0¥0'E 6£'895'9¢L'¢ 0L0152eT'E 96'/2EVILE 9€L18'¥09 Y 9O PYLLLE LL TL'628'00L°CL
88'¢Z0'€ESS 15'059'888'S 9L'LEL'E6T L 96'€18'85)'L 81'569'0v.'L §5'562'8EY'L 95'890°'95 'L 16'759'9L0'8 SLeLLoL 00 7Py Zh
TrErseEz8 e 85Iy vZo'e 71605 ¥SH'E 68'85£'629'¢ 82'2£5'089'¢ L670Y'9zE'e ¥1°25.'825°¢ 86'G70'L¥L'E 89G12'269'¢ €9'618°216°C
££°9EE'820'G €LLBLYBL'S 0L'9/2'698'S 21'865°202°S 0¥'CL6'869'% 98'G01 6627 69'6£8'7€L'E 11°626'625 7 S0'009'6L8% 0ZZLoveY'Yy
60'LEL'GOY 0€'686'Z8Y L0'196'L09 6£'75.'€89 66161 '9Y9 YY1y 909 99'098'9Y 96'7€9'125 2LO9E VLS £€°/91°285
9L v67'€8Y 15662619 62'2¢8'L08 09'LLF'108 £6'8¥1'808 6L192'50L S1'866'€58 €7'929°029 20'189'€Y9 81'6LE'€0L
§9'£50'800'} SOPYLLZ0L S1'626'581L 01'+82'922Z 1 90'99%'L22 'L oF'E6Y'0L0'L 2€626'250't €Y'18E°004 ) y0'255°89L°L ZLYEV'ELTL
6€°€L6'HLEL 9€'906'9¢€' L 202920011 12652296 10'6€5°000't ¥9'L9Y'588 06'v22'558 v1'8.5°GL0) S9LLY'SE0'L PrSLL L6
15206'054'S S0'SYLTYe'Y 89'698'S0L'S €6'800'1L6'G 041926549 80'€£8'028'S €1'908'66%'S 91'918'259'G 0L'¥99'v¥5'S 12Z1'955'S
£7'816'960'C 28°LL0°€01'T 09'9¥1°195°Z SLovy'L8r'T 19°€16'619°T 81'868°259°C €1°12,'908'T TE'B59'6ELT 68'991 8Y5'C 88'8v€'019°C
98'959'152°C 86'€26vZY T 89'162'7£5'C 99'910'829'C 6Lv€8'1GL'T £0'2.L8'655'C 12'886'875'C 02 ¥92'085'C T5189819 18115019
96071 ¥0E'E SL€19'955°E €9vil'esy'e 86'.65'829°€ STELSELE'E 51019'66L°C 25'606'88L°C 96V VLLE oLoLriaLe 6£'882'525°€

£L171€9886°¢

2€689'50€°G)

9€'05€'008'GH 98'9/£°€€8'G

S6YST¥IS'SL

90'656'G46'Y1L

S0'eITiye'eL

LY yee' 88 vi

8¥'/89'9€T'GL

09'66C'189'G}

0Z'1zv'eszes

¥0'€20'861 95

GZ¥06'8L9'%S 10'509'G/6'¥S

€£625'112T'sS

98'6€6°11E°GS

¥2'96G°2L90°LS

99'094'60Z 85

€0'16.°068'85

92 0gL 61709

G06LG LIS
GE'L0V'G6L'8
08991190}
00'82¢'648'CrS

9002

WPl LI8IHX3

voceT ey
Le'858'6¥2'0l
69659288
00°LLZ'¥8S ¥¥S

£00¢

€l yro'ess
§1'862'859°01 09'6¥5'865 6
05'€69'€85 8C'€l0'99C

00266'9¢H'cr$ 00'86€'LZ5 v¥S

8002

o]
S|
«l

Lo'geeLie)
L¥'19.7/89'L
g8iyeeee
00'¥80'v26'GYS

oroe

LZ66L°156
6C°LGT0EL'8
9€'Ly0'0€C
00'9£8'666 G¥S

Lioc

a3LanvyNn

10°628°€00'}
6.'8/8'256'8
¥6'STY' 8Ty
00°€9v'c89'9vs

SANN4 TYININNYIAOO "SIONV1YE ANNS NI SIONVHD

10141Sid TO0HDS HOIH TYNOID3Y S33HYOON-NOQEIINNH HLHON

PSYY6GLL
§9'G0Z 6y 0L
VA A4 N
00'€9Y'€89'9vS

€1z

€G'vLLe9s
CL'9¥9'eZ8'6
8€°9Y0'L68
00'v8€'909'L¥S

vi0c

L0'€L€°995
68'€09Z2L L1
9e'9ve 88T
00L06'LY8'LYS

¢-g 2INPayds Y4yO '8dinos

sainypuadxa |ejdeouou
Jo sbejusniad e se soinies Jq8g

ssouejeq puny up abueys BN

(sasn) sa01nos Buloueuy 18I0 [BJ0 L
N0 siaysues]
pa(soued pie ajelg
{pa1ebpng-uou) ssses| jeyder
(sasn) seoinos Buioueul4 JaYI0

sainyipuadxa (Japun) Jano
sanusAal jo (AousiollaQ) ssaoxg

sabieyo Jayio pue 133U}
jediould

190I1MI8S 1980

jediound ases| - Aepno jeyded

|ediound ases) jeyden

Aepno jeyden

sjooyos (e1oads
slyauaq askojdwa psjedojeun
s)yauaq aakojdiue pejeocily
$801As8s UoNBLOdS LRI JUSPNIS
s0uBUSjUIEW puE SUoEJsadO JuBld
ABOjoOUYD3 ] UOHEBULIOJU| UOHRISIUILPY
S35IAIBS [BAUSD
SOOIAISS BANBHSIUILPY [00YS
SIS SABNSILIWPE [BIBUSD
S82IAI8S PajeIS UONINIISUI 9 JUBpNIS
uoni.

s8oinleg poddng
uononisul JByI0
UOHONAISUL UOBDNPS [B1oadg
uononisuj Jeinbay

uononsu|

sainypuadxy

anuanal [ejo |
$80IN0S [BJaps
$82IN0S 8)E}S
SNOBUB|IOSIN
Ans| xe]

sanuanay

132



18°6/0°€L6
9€'6€6'G18
06'€59°'€8G
08'¥96'SG€C
25'508'68¢
096,981
L0'€26'9VE
18'189°€6C
299Lv'Gy.
12'6£9'852$

jejoL

«§-Tw LIGIHX3

Zl'v99'eSe
¥Z'19L'Lye
9061705

69'256°S0}
8570L°C€ET
GLLL8'VS1
00°€PE'€9lL
01'802'6.L
95'968'9/1
6v'€./'66$

Snoaue|[adsi

0G'€6G'€SE

20067 vL
81789681
91'888°0%
veeLLie
S0'8L¥'9L
§9czL'0L
00°5v¥8'02v$ 167118V
LEVL9°L$

sajegay saljijoe4
ABiaug ues|n jo asn

a3LianvNn

61'1L€6'66C
L yLLYIS
22°995'86¥
€5°91€'901
8LCLZ'9L
LL'G67°01L
96'2G0°€El
9.°G0L°LL
08'v¥58'SL
85°617'66%

SUENEELT]]
uQ 1salaju|

3JOHNOS A9 INNIATE TvOOT d3HLO ANNL TVHINTO

00/88'S

0Z'8LL'0C
ov'eel'y

00 ¥0Lv€E
9¢€'6¥9'9C
62°2v6'99
€€CLLLGS

uoninL

L1014 1SIA TO0HIS HOIH TYNOIDIY STIHHOOA-NOAQHILINNH HLHON

SpJooay JouIsIg 90In0g

900¢
£00¢
800¢
600¢
0i0¢
L10C
(44014
€10¢
yioc
§10¢

0¢ aunr pspuzg
1B |eosid

133



001 ¢ Jed aie sorel xe] :(q)

seiuedwod wajsAg sebuassay pue ydeibeje] ‘suoydsia jo juswdinby pue sjusweldwy ‘Asuiypep Jo snjeA sjgexe] (e)

uonexe | o pleog AJunod ayy AQ palapio UsUm SINO00 JUSLISSSSSeay

“uonexey Jo peoq Aunod yoea Aq paysiiqelse (anjen 1exJew Jo Jley) anjen anu) jo ebelusoiad swos Je pessesse 8q 0} palinbal st Auedoid [eay B10N

se|qeley JO 1oBNSqy :80iN0S

9£9°0 0/£'908'299 9¢1°/60'cZS 80€'G6. 828'10£'225 000'cee’g 008'060°1Z QY VY9 LY 00900 Sy 000°€E8’ L 9002
08.°0 G8/'655°¢69 6/9'€90'/25 Iv0°LLL 829'26£'92S 000°€€E'8 008060°LZ 8Z1L'6SL'TY 0zL' LYY Lvy 000'2ZE'L 1002
Zr90 v19'181°ZLL €¥6'LLL'82S GLL'LG9 928'921'925 000°ce€’e 002'956'02 826 LIV EY 009'68¢€ 8v7 001'9/6'9 2002
¥£9°0 112 ¥S1'€99 Z£6'862'1 €5 ¥06'L¥S 820'/69'0€S 000'¢€E's 002'956'0Z 8ZL YL EY 004'215'06Y 00V L¥L 8002
6/90 00€'£06'£59 GL1'69S'LES /80°L0. 820'899'0€S 000'€€E'8 002'956'0Z 822'698'ey 006'L£9'05Y 0012889 010z
6v9°0 G65'€18'089 129'L0Z'1€S 660'€08 825 ¥0v'0€S 00v'06Z L 00.'6LL'L2 8ZE'BLE VY 00€'165°05F 008'¢96'9 110z
1590 LEY'€96'665 ¥19'260'82S 986'888 829'¢02'/2S 007'066'9 004'6L1'12 8ZY vSY v 00825 '8y 00€'t70'9 zLoz
9/90 £/1°692' 795 81£'829'825 061°0L6 8Z1'8LL'12S 007'066'9 002'621°12 8Z1'Ge5 ey 006108611 00¥'112'9 £10¢
5590 966'091 7SS 168818425 690'€L6 828'506'92S 00¥'066'9 00L'6LL'LZ 826'88.°CY 007098 '6YY 00%'980'9 v102
WA Zv5'G95'655¢ #01°880'825$ 9/1'820'L$ 82£'650'/25$ 00¥'066'9%8 00S'262'02$ 82€'080'cH$ 001'52}°05v$ 000'901 9% 5L0Z
q) 8iey xXe| ERIEIN a|gexe | Amv saiiiin ERIENN passassy “cmr:tmdﬂ leuisnpuy _m_ogwc,:\coo wieH |enuspisey pueT ueden Q¢ aunp
jooyog pazijenbz Aunod) uonenjep algngd [ejoL papuz
joau1Q [BI0L [enjoy 153 BN Jes A |eosid
a3LIanvNN

WIH3THL38 40 JIHSNMOL - ALY3d0dd FTdVXVL 40 INTVA TYNLOV ANV IN VA G355355Y
LOIY1SIA TOOHOS HOIH TYNOIDIY SIFIHYOOA-NOGEIINNH HLHON

L# 133HS
W91, LIgIHX3

134



001$ Jod aue sejes xe] (q)

ssiuedwo) wisisAs Jebussseyy pue ydeibaja) ‘suoydsje | o Juswdinb3 pue sjuswsldw| ‘Asuiyoepy 10 anjeA sjgexe (&)

uonexe | 4o pieog Ajuno) syl Ag paisplo USYM SIND00 JUSLISSESSEY

‘uonexey} 4o pieoq Ajnoo yoes Aq paysiiqe;ss (anjea 1exJeuw Jo Jiej) anjen eni} jo abejusoiad BWos e passasse aq o) palinbai st Auadoid |eay 210N

sajgeiey 0 JOBJISQY [80IN0g

8610 V1L L8 ¥SL iv9'TL6Z9lL BE9'LYE'L 800'L2L'191 00L'SLy 001'96¢ 00.'€09'v} 3062552 005'glz Ov! 00S'v26'¢ 9002
050 986'839'¢91 088'G10°€9l zL0vZZ'L 808162191 00L'S.Y 001'96¢ 00€'666 171 800'8.6'L 009'eyL OvL 001'661'€ 1002
850 95t v¥¥8 ¥l Z.9'9L1'G9l ¥95'618L 201°260'79) 004'S.Y 001 '96¢ 00£'022'94 800'686'} 00€'GA6 L7l 00€'¥20'e 800¢
95%°0 £E€'1ET'TG) 00Z'5¥5'691 Z65°L82°L 809'/GZ V9L 00L'SLy 001'96€ 00412291 802'686'L 009'06€ Z¥L 00£'88L'C 8002
viy0 012261651 00Z'980'991 265'.82'1 809'86. 791 00L'SLY 001°96¢ 00L°29L'9L 802'686'L 000°80F'SPL 00$'99€°Z 010z
Z85°0 816'956'€G1 £50'6E5 '8Vl 6v1'€/8 809'199'/1L 009’21t 006'.6€ 008'216'GlL 206°¢L8'L 00L'/0€'LZ1 004'908'} 110z
G850 Ve L6Y Lyl GZS'LLE LYl LIEYrL 80Z'cLGovlL 009'LL¥ 006'£6€ 008°/16'GlL 20€'8/Y'L 006'096'9Z} 00.008'L z102
S50 £EL'y0'8sl 802'/56'GY L 802'/56'GY 1L 009°LLY 006°'26€ 008'L16'GlL 80€'8LY'L 00S'€LE'9ZL 00L'Zev'i €10z
1190 Lee'229'sel 805'€5G Gl 805'€55 Gl 001'Z8¢ 008'26€ 008'L16'GlL 80E'8LY'L 00Z'010'9Z1 00Z°L9¢°L v102
0190 698'6LL VELS 800'825'GrL$ 0018 806'/25'GV1$ 001 'Z8¢$ 006'.6$ 008'L16'GL$ 80€'8LY LS 000'204'921$ 008'6%2'1$ 5102
BV aley xe | Am:_m> 9|gexe | Amv SENMT BNnjeA pessessy Emc._tmn( felsnpuy _m_ULwEEOQ Hchn_l |enuspisay pueT juedoe) _om aunp
|00Y0S pazijenb3 Ajuno)) uonenjep oland [ejoL pepuz
108413 |Be101 |enioy 1s3 18N IeaA [eosi4
a3nanvNn

NO4ITVO 40 HONOYOE - ALd3d0¥d F19vXVL 40 INTVA IVNALOV ANV INTVA d3SSISSY
1014 1SIad TOOHOS HOIH TYNOID3Y STIHHOOA-NOQHIINNH HLION

Z# 133HS
W91, LIgIHX3

135



001$ Jod aue sajes xe] :(q)

sajuedwo)) walsAg Jebuassay pue ydeibsja] ‘suoydala] jo juswdinbg pue sjuswsaidw| ‘Alauiyoep J0 anjea ajgexe] (e)

uonexe] o pieog Alunod sy Ag paiaplo Uaym SIND00 JUSLISSOSSESY

‘uoljexe} Jo pJeoq AJunod uoes Ag paysiigelss (snjea 1syiew 4o Jiey) anjea sy jo abejusdiad swos je passasse ag 0} palinbal st Aladoid jeay 910N

sa|geiey O JOBASqY [@0JN0S

1870 y0E'¥18'G6¢€ 982'929°20% 987'690'L 008'95G'L0Y 00Z'LLE'L 005'59L°ie 001'¥8¢C 000'689'80¢€ 000'8¥0'v 900¢
69Y0 G8E'L1B'GEY 286'L9v'BlY Z8L'Zio'L 008'6¥Y 8Ly 001'628°L 005'9€h'¥8 005882 00Z'L69'Lee 00S'v0Z'v 100Z
2iy0 80Z'9LE vy 9G1'0v6'SZY 95188 000'950'6Z¥ 008'066'0} 00v'/18'68 00L'1LE 006'965'8LE 008'6.6't 800¢
L6¥°0 ysz'esL o0zy §/8'995'9Zy Gol'ess oLl'eig'sey 008'066°0L 055'65L°06 00L'iL2 005'/27'BLE 09L'796't 6002
8050 olv'ocL 6Ly v.6'0.6'GZY 795950} Olv'vie vy 008°066 01 0GE'¥36'68 001142 000'015'8Le 091'8GL'G oloe
9160 956'Ge€ €0y 168'8L9°eCY LEE'OSL L 095'89Y'2Zy 009'8€9'6 00€'69¢'68 00Z'8¢ 00€'¥9Z'8L€E 091'861'G L1oc
ceso L16'€89'06€ 6YL'9LL LY 689°L0C"} 090'606'60% 009'8€9'6 008'596'08 00c'8e 006'v.LEVLE 095°L68'Y cloe
9850 €61 'v¥Z'8.E 681°08509€ 689°L0C'} 005'2.E'6G€ 008'v69'8 00.'6e€'G. 00c'8¢ 00¥'505'892 00¥'86L'9 €loc
1960 L00°€ZS'18€E 000°L2.'€G€E 000°/2.°€G€ 0og’Lov's 00€'SY9'€L 009'¢csl 000°1 15692 008'966'S ¥10Z
8€50 129'€E6'E8ES 051'¥2Z'55¢$ 051 '¥2z'5e8 00€'L07'8% 001'089'€L$ 0Sv'S9L8 008'926'992$ 005°050'9$ §gloc
g) 8ley xe| aneA sjgexe | e) saiijiin anje/ passassy ﬂqgg»m leuisnpuj {erdJswuIo) wie4 jenuapissy pueT juedep 0¢ aunp
1004os pazifenb3 Ajuno)) uofienjep olignd |E10L pspu3z
8lIg [eloL [NV 183 N s\ |eosiy
a3LIanvNn

NOLNID 40 NMOL - ALd3d0dd 319YXVL 40 INTVA TYNLOV ANV INTVYA d3SSISSY
101d1S1a TOOHOS HOIH TYNOIDFY SIFHHOOA-NOUQEILNNH HLHON

€# 133HS
W97 LIgIHX3

136



001$ Jad ase sajel xe] (q)

ssjuedwo) WaisAg Jebusssayy pue ydesbsje] ‘suoydsia] jo juswdinb3 pue syjuswsidw| ‘A1suiyoeiy jo anjeA ajgexe] (g)

uonexe] jo pleog AJunog ay} Aq palspio Usym Sind00 JUSLUSSISSEDY

‘uoljexel jo pleoq AJunod yoes Ag paysiiqelss (anjen 1axiew Jo iiej) anjen anij jo abejuadiad awos je passasse aq 0} palinbal st Auadoid [eay 8j0N

sajoeiRY JO 10BNSqY [92IN0S

2050 881'850'929'2 191'9/8'085'2 £91'840CL 00¥'26.'895°C 008'G00'8} 009'696°291 00€'825'922 005'658'L L 001'988°290'C ooL'sys'Le 9002
6610 Gz6'€Z1'c89' 00L'€L¥'065°C 00/'LL0°€L 00v'LOY'LL6'2 008'500'8L 009'696'291 00€'v99'L22 009'608'¢. 009'285'080' 00S'v9€'02 200
8050 969'G95'099C 000'¥88°209'C 00Z'¢6S 7L 008'062'€65'C 008'S00'81 00S°ZYZ v9l 002'zz6'822 002'686'CL 005'¥20'060°C 00920161 800¢
LEG0 259'968'¥€5'C €65'20¥'909'C L12729V'EL 9LE'SY6'265T 008°500'8L 00S°ZYZ vol 002°€06'¥ET 916'80L°€L 00.4'89€'280°C 009'9LL'6L 6002
SvG0 §60'80€'66%'C ¥28'8€8'2¥5'C ¥2L'6€0° 1L 00L'66.4'1€5'C 000°zZeL'8L 00S°Zye vol 000'9¢6'82¢C 000°€lv'eL 000'081'820°C 009'668'81 cloe
G960 9€T'2E0'SSEC #90°0002€¥'C ¥9.'858'8 00€'LvLezye 0oocel 8l 00512851 009'0£T'922 005965'LL 002'L6€'0€6'L 000°9£0°81 Lioc
1290 £Y5'¥89'8Yl'C glz'zegelee 9lg9¢ce’L 00£'S¥€'502'2 00L'LLL'8L 009'99¢L¥L 000'¢05'LiC 00L'€69'€9 00L'€26'8YL L 008'8¥L'SL cloc
cr90 65C'€€9C8LT 258'696'9vL C SY'vL6'S 00¥'L66'0¥L'C 006°LvS'8L 009'8veEYL 000'9¥0°26L 00%'86'09 004'526'904°L 008'¥7L'yL €lLoc
6590 688'64.'G81'C 008'025'G€L'C 008'026'S€L'C 006'L¥5'8L 00£'660'L¥L 008'c89'L6L 00v'¥0Z'85 00£'919'904'L 00L'vLE€L 1434
9/9°0 209'00L'2¥2'C$ 005'9¢L'6YL'CS 00S'9€L'6¥1L'ZS  006'CPL'6LS 005'92¥'65L$ 002'8e8'681$ 00Z'0£9'65$ 005'9€6'GLL'L$ 00z'zal’cLs si02

q) siey Xe| anjeaA ajgexe | N anje/\ pessassy jusupedy leuisnpuj [eiswwo) wie _mzcwv_mmm, pueT juedsep 0g aunp

|ooyos pazijenb3 Ajunog) uoneniep dlgand [eloL papuz
alg lejoL [enjoy s3 BN lea [eosiy
J3LaNvNnN
NOLINITO 40 dIHSNMOL - ALd3d0dd 318¥XVL 40 INTYA TYNLOY ANV INTVYA d3SSISSY
10141S1d TOOHOS HOIH TYNOIDFd SF3HIOO0N-NOTHIINNH HLHON
y# L33HS

J9T. LIgIHX3

137



001$ Jod ale sajes xe] :(q)

saluedwo) welshg Jsbusssa|y pue ydeibaja] ‘suoydsje] jo juswdinbg pue sjuswsidwy] ‘Aisuiyoely Jo anjea ajgexe] (e)

uolexe | Jo pleog AJunogD sy} AQ paIspio usym SINJJ0 JUSWSSSsSSesy

‘uonexe} Jo pJeoq AJUnod yoes AQ paysi|gelsa (njeA JoxJew Jo ley) anjea ani} jo abejusoiad aWwes Je pessasse aq 0} palinbal s Ausdoud [esy SION

se|geley JO 1orAsqy [90IN0S

6950 81.'¢¢1 929 GB0'L/6'GES 28Svy0'L EYG'ZEB VES 00L'9vZ'L oov'zLLe 0050906 SvZ 0L LLL 009'160°29¢ 001'092'9 9002
1650 0€£9'2€8'999 Z0L'LLE'LYS 088'/.6 Z28'cee'ors 0ov'eELL'L oovzile 000'88/'8¢ 2eLZse6LL 006'225'9.¢ 008'6£8'9 2002
290 6£2'522'€99 0LL'LLL'LGS 885'04CC [ AW 4 A 2] oov'elit 008'80¢C 001'88G'8¢€ zTe'660'eTh 008'896°2.€ 00%'89¢'9 800C
0850 122'685'G09 ¥€6'¥62'55S PECYIL'L 009'0€L'¥5S 005'980°L 008'80€C 001'285'8¢ oolL'osz'ozt 00l'9g6z'08¢e 000°'L09'G 6002
8990 ¥9.'Zv€'¥09 G2/l'0v.'6GS 182°6GEC 8€Y'18¢°LGS 005'980'L 008'80€' 00/'€0Z'8¢€ 8€T6L6'GLL 000'002°€6¢E 00Z'€99'9 0loe
8650 055'658'64G ¥S1'€2L'96S 9€1'88%'C 810'6eZ'¥SS 005'980'} 0o8'ove'e 001'68L'8¢ 8Ly 69c'LLL 000'¥86'68¢ 002692 Loz
€90 169285085 886'/Z1'2¥S ¥82'025C v0.',09'6€G 008'000°L 006'82¢'C 00¥'6LL'8E 70l '¥068'601 006'GlLL'e8e 009'8¢L'S 2oz
0990 28.'886'.5G 0€2'6£9'LPS s00'€zse GZZ'9LL'6ES 008000} 006 82€C 00e'6LL'LE GeS'vez LLL 00€'9vL'e8¢ 00¥' 9Ly £Lozg
8950 168'01L0'28S ¥/€'/9€'6EG 009'€0¥'L v/.'€96'LEG 000620} 006'8Z¢€'C ooe'slz'Le v.¥'0L¥'801 002'€10'G8¢ 00¥'206'c 102
Zi90 ¥09'G//'655%  L/5'09.'6£5% 009'cOt'LS //6'95€'8€63 00¥'LEO'LS 006'87€'Z$ 00€'6LL9€S 1/£265'80L% 00Z'110'98¢€$ 008'299°¢S §gloz
@) aieg xe1 [ENEIN a|qexe] €) Sanin ERNEINESESSY justuyjedy jemsnpuj [erdiswuion wiey [enuspisay pUET JUBDBA 0€ aunp
|ooUog pazijenb3 Aluno)) uonenje/ algnd [ejoL pspu3
10841d 1ejo L [enoy 1s3 18N 1BBA [BOSIH
a3nanvNn

NITINVYH 40 dIHSNMOL - ALd3d0dd 31dvXVL 4O INTVA TVNLOY ANV INTVA 03SSISSY
10141SId TOOHOS HOIH TYNOID3Y STIHHOOA-NOGEIINNH HLHON

G# 133HS
W9-F. LigiHX3

138



001$ 4od aue saies xe] :(q)

saiuedwo) welsAg sebuasss|y pue ydesbaj| ‘suoydsie o Juswdinbg pue sjusws|dwij ‘Aisuiyoeyy Jo anjep ajgexe (e)

uonexe | Jo pieog AJunoD syl Ag paJsplo USUM SIN200 JUSWISSSSSEaY

‘uoljexey Jo pieoq Aunco yoes Aq paysi|geiss (anjea Josuew 4o Jigy) anjeA anij Jo abejusdiad swos je passasse aq 0 palinbal si Auadoud [eay 810N

Sa|qeley JO 10BASqY '80iN0g

¥.9°0 zLL'851 28l evevieect COv'ELy 0v6'0v.L'8EL 000088 009 89S 008228y 1€9'G96°L 006'GLL'62L €00'8z¢'L 900¢
7,90 8¥9'LEL'86L S.Y'06¥'6EL 7€6'98¢ L¥G'E0Z'6EL 00Z'G0Z'} 009'89G 008026y LE2°18V'C 009'¥99'8ZL v0L'€9¢" | 1002
8¥.°0 86.L'vL¥'G0C GL¥'609'6EL V.y'LSC LY6'LGE6EL 00z's0z'L 009'89% 000'8VL'Y LE218V'C 008°'166'8ZL y0L'€9E’L 800¢C
6870 0v1'6.2'861 99/'vzG'6ElL 9ze'ele ovy'iSZ'6EL 002'G0Z'L 009899 005698t 1£2'18Y'C 008'€9.'821 €0i'€9€'} 6602
orL 0 1GZ'1L./6'881 vLEVLE'6EL v.lv'LGC 078'Z99'6¢ 00Z'60z'} 009'895 005'698'¥ L€218YV'C 002'GLL'62) €0L'ege’} oLoz
£vL 0 L/2'6L5'L8L 9GZ'1L9v'6EL 991 '68¢ 060°CLL'6EL 00z's0z'L 009'895 006'698't /86'08Y'C 000'912'8Z1 €08'lee’t Lo
§89°0 eyl 9596 Lvy'6EL 991'68¢ 06.'851'6€L 002'60Z'} 009'89G 005698t /86°08%'C 00/'20.'82L €08'LEE) 4714
0690 Y9e'vS 29l 069'v¥0'6EL 069'v¥0'6EL 002’50z} 009'895 006698t /89'625°C 00S'2€9'82L €0C'6eC’L €l0g
Zv. 0 99€'G8GLGL GPS 90'6E L S¥S'¥90'6EL 00Z's0Z'L 009'895 00€'cz8'y Zy6'€00'C ooL'gel 'zl c€or'see’) yi0z
2590 811'182'G5LS$ 19/'8v6'8ELS 192'8v6'8E1L$ 00s¢Zie'Ls 009'895% 00€'€Z8'v$ 869'G00'Z$ 006°260'6ZL%  €0Z'L¥Z'LS §L0c
(COEENEE [ERIEIN 3|gexe] [Tl SN[E/\ POSSessy Juswipedy [euIsnpu] {eisuwo) wiey [enuspissy PUET JUBDEA 0¢ aunp
Jooyog pazilenb3 Ajuno)) uonenjen oland elol pspuz
10841 [B10 L BNy 183 18N {EDA [EOSIH
a3lianvNn
HANAHYO N9 40 HONOYHOE - ALd3d0dd FT1aVXVL 40 INTVA TVNLOV ANV INIVA 0355358V
LOIJ1SId TOOHOS HOIH T¥YNOIDTY STIHEOOA-NOAYILNNH HLYON
9% 133HS

W97 LIGIHX3

139



00L$ 4od aie sejei xey (q)

seiuedwo) walsAs Jsbussss|y pue ydeibeje] ‘suoydels | jo juswdinb3 pue sjuswsidw] ‘AIBUILOEIN JO aNjeA digexe (e)

uonexe| jo pieog Ajunod au) AQ paIspIo Usym SiNJ00 JUSWISSESSERY

‘uonexey Jo pieoq AJunood yoea Aq paysiigelss (anjea 1exew Jo Jiey) anjeA ani) Jo sbejusoiad awos j2 pessasse aq o} palinbai si Auadold 123y 810N

SB|UBIRY JO JOBASQY (90JN0S

124740 gle'see’ Ll 828'9zE vyl 890'eclL’L 09.'€0Z eyl 008'S¥L'C 00G°LL0'L 0G1'6€8'G 7.9'Ce8'E g8y'260°cTh LG1'LL9'9 900¢
S6€0 10920671 L €68°/¥0'8YL 890'¢€clL’L G8L'vZ6 9Vl 008'S¥.°C 00§'110'L 050'6€8'S 665'759'¢ G85'08Y'8Z1 1GZ'eBL'S 200
0sy'0 yOL'GLL'eSH €9€'9/2'LG1 82E'866 Ge0'8.Z°0S1 008'SvL'C 006'410°L 050'6£8'G 669'689'¢ GBZ'LEGZEL L0L'097 Yy 800¢
€250 950'0L9'8YL 080'G¥9'LGL S¥8'C86 GET'ZT99'0G 008'sv.'C 00S'L10'} 052'0€8'S 669'689'¢ g8¥'869'cel 106'989'c 600¢
2050 89Z'808°0V1 Z8€'629°05 1 L¥Z'8LL Sel'Lsg eyl 008'GYLT 00G'HI0'} 052'0€8'S 669669 € G3zZ'z/G'eel 109'166'C 0Loz
8v90 L60'VBY 9EL 826'LS6'€CL £€60°659 GEB'ZOE'ETL 00¥'GL¥'C 000°958 056'891'S 662071 'E G80'E8Y 601 L0L'6LLT L1oc
G590 ¥6.'G66'0EL EYB'ESTET 806'75¢ G€0'669C21 o]0} VA 000'958 051'€20'G 662°0VL'E 586'686'801 Loc'gle’e (4304
cg90 1/2'696'5¢C) geloel'zel seloeLcel 00V'SLY'C 000958 05€'9956't 662071 '€ G80'8.¥'80L L00'0ce' €10¢
6590 ovL'ZTy 6CL 0oL 'vis'iel 00L'viSLeh 00¥'S.¥'C 000959 05€'996'v Yovzii'e G85'G9L°L0L L0e'8ee'C ¥10¢
€490 6.9'98¢€'LZ1$ 00£'259'121$ 0022591218 00V'SL¥'CS 000'958% 0S£'996' S yor'CLLES G82'2.0'8018 102°0L1°28 13014
q) oley xe| ERITEIN a|gexe ] (e) ssilijinn aN|e/ Passassy ucmrcw\_rw;% [euisnpuy (IS ETUTelg} AQH@M |enuspissy g@’n_ JUBDBA 0g sung
jlelel¥ioly U®N__m36m_ \SCZOOV uonienjeA onand |e10j pspuzy
10841 |ejo . [enjoy 1s3 1N Jes ) |eosid
a3LianvNn

NOLJWVH 40 HONOYO4E - ALd2d0dd 379vXV.L 40 INTVA TVNLOV ANV INIVA d3SSISSY
10141SI1d TOOHOS HOIH TYNOI93d SFFHHOOA-NOQHALINNH HLJON

# 133HS
W97, LI8IHX3

140



001¢ Jed ate sejel xe| (q)

ssjueduwio) welsAg sebusssapy pue ydeibela] ‘suoydsie | jo juswdinbg pue syuswajdwi ‘AISUIYDOEN JO anjeA sjgexe] (e)

uoiexe] Jo pleog AlunoD sy} Ag paispio UsyMm SINDJ0 JUSWISSESsesy

‘uonexe} Jo pieoq Ajunod yoes Ag paysigelsa (enjea 1sxew Jo Jiey) anj2a sni} jo abejuaoiad swos Je passasse aq o1 palinbel si Aadoid jgay 8J0N

So|qElRY JO 10BASqY (80IN0G

865°C GG/'6.6'66¢ G09'6Z1'08¢ §00°LLE 009'Z18'8.¢ 006'0.8°¢ 00L'¥5S5 0L 005°€L8°01L 00€'€0L'L 00€',60'8Y¢ 006'ZLE'Y 9002
LESO vY6z 'Y veY 90/'€55'08¢ 908'6v0'L 006°L0G6'6.¢€ 002'z8.L'c 005'6L4'6 00¥'0£5'01 00¥'860°1 009'881°05¢ 008'88L ¥ 1002
250 L06'L00'0vY 906'9V5 '8¢ 208'Sv0’L 00L'L09'cee 009'60S 000'¥20'8 00v' L6 L1 00¥'860'L 00L'/2¥'vSe 000'¥66'L 800Z
6050 ov.'86€'6eh 502°0ve'6.¢E S06'€20'i oogolegle 009605 000'v20'8 00V Ly6'LL 00%'860'L 002'825'v5¢E 00.'802'2 6002
1290 Lee'gL6'zzy ¥€.'Gl0'8.L¢ yEQ'VEB 00L'180°L.E 009605 009'8¢c' L 008°L¥6'LL 00%'860 L 004°€00'vSE 000'¢8LC oLoe
0850 ZeL 28y Loy YARA 2N Li1'sze 00L'8LL'9/¢€ 009'60S 0098¢ee’L 008'.¥6'LL 00v'860°L 00/'€2z'es¢e 000°000°C Lioc
6€5°0 GZ9'168°€8¢ 668'96/°C.¢€ Svy'LZe ySy'G/8'LLE 009605 00988’/ 002 796 L1 vG8'/8%'L 008'cl9'8ve GO¥'L96°L [4%4
€290 L22718€'65¢€ v.8'160'¥9E 0Zi'Lse ¥SL'0vL'€9e 009'605 00¥'906'L 00%'L9L°LL G881 L 001'166'6£¢€ 00¥'8LY'L €10¢
2090 Y0G 0EV ' 6YE ¥66°.99 65¢ ¥56°L99'65¢€ 009'60S 000'+2Z'2 00% L9L°L1 vG8' L8 L 00¥'9¥0°LEE 00/°6€9°1L 14174
9/6°0 £1E'9PL'09ES ¥G8'99¥°0€€S 758'99¥'0€€S 000480 18 005°L5.'8% 008ceLzLS ¥56'29¢°L$ 0oL'ovl'soes 006°26¢'LS §L0¢
(OEIENEE [EQIETN a|qexe] BN[EA PaSSassyY juswiedy fenisnpuj [CRENNs]g) “wieg [enuapisay SNERBUESEIN 0€ aunrp
jooyos pazienb3 Aiuno)) uonenjep 1ejo | pepug
108lig [ejo L {enpy 1s3 BN s A [eosi4
a3rianvyNn
4201449 HOIH 40 HONOYHOY - ALdId0dd F1gVYXVL 40 ANTYA TVNLOV ANV INTVA d3SS3SSY
10MH1SId TOOHOS HOIH TVYNOIDTY SFIHYOOA-NOCQYILNNH HLIYON
8# 139HS

W9 LIgIHX3

141



001¢$ Jad aie sajel xe] (q)

saluedwo) wayshg Jabusssa|y pue ydeibsja] ‘suoydsie ] jo Juswidinbg pue sjusws|dwl] ‘AIsUuIyoey JO anjeA ajgexe] (e)

uopexe] Jo pleog AJuno) au} Ag psiapio USUM SINO00 JUDLLSSOSSEDY

‘UOIBXE} JO pleoq AJUnoS Yoes Ag paysligelsa (anjen joxiew Jo Jiey) anjea anJi jo abejuasiad swos je passasse aq 0} palinbai si Apadoud [eay 910N

sa|qeley JO Joelsqy (90IN0g

5390 €10'0ee'see XA S WAVA°1 6¥L'168 90'228'991 006'L¥.L'6 062'225'LL 009'95Y 00v'8.5' v/ y16'LLG'0L 9002
69¢°0 988'9¢l'cze £€TT'viB8'TYe £€29'G8e'L 009'88G'L¥€ 000'L0E'L 000'862'L} 00€'298'¢Tl 000'zv8 00Z'v66°CLL 00l'98z'se 00T
$S€°0 280'9z) cze Zyl'.86'0€E Z76'0GE’L 002'9€9'62¢ 000°L0€E"L 000'86Z' L1 009'919'50L 000'Z¥8 002'0zZ'281 008'/6¢'22 8002
Lye0 2€.'6£2'10¢€ ¥26'961'0€€ yZ1'9es’L 008'099'82¢ 000'10€'t oov'eLz'LlL 006'928°901L 000°Z¥8 oov'gzl'esl 001'6¥£'02 6002
12¥'0 G9Z'650'62¢ 9z1'€99'vee L9V ¥6LL 659'89Y'€€E 000'L0€'L 00¥'€LZ L 001'89L'901 6G8'/L¥8 00¥'G0€'G61 006'z€9'81 oLo0e
9/5°0 0¥0'6L0'00€ 9v8'Lzo'sLe L9¥'v6L° L 6.€',28'9.2 00¥'829'0} 000'899'6 000°102'001 62112 00/'26%'25 1 000'120'¢ Loz
8950 262'9€6'682 6.9'0¥€'2L2 0z.'08. 656'G9S5'L/2 008'G42'/) 080'8¥/.'8 00L'6¥2'68 6.2'LLL 005'€02'251 00z'gle's zioz
1190 oLe'L0L'L2 92/'669'€.2 £21'659 €09'0€0'€L2 008'6L6'61 08¢'z/1'8 006'90/'88 €26'0LL o0ov'eyL'zsl 00z'zee’e €102
9290 £00'626'292 €0y'046'€L2 €0¥'0.6'€L2 008'640'LZ oee'zLL'e 00/'/€1'88 €26'0LL 000'8Z¢'v5 1| 009'L¥G'L 102
8850 £12'928'082% €09'82.'6.2% €09'82.'6.2% 008'901'92% 086'cL.'8% 00/'252'88% €26'0128 009'vLY'vSLS 009'625'}$ gLoe
@) ared xel [ERIEN a|qexe] By sammn SN|EA PoSSassy juswpedy |Jeuisnpuy| [ERIENVIele) wieg [enuspissy PUET JUBDBA “ocaunf

jooyos paziienb3g Aunod) uopenjep oljand lejo} papu3

10811q [B10 [enjoy 1s3 18N JBBA |eosi4
a3fianvNn

NONVE3T 40 HONOHOEG - ALd3d0dd 319VYXVL 40 INTVYA TYNLOVY ANY INTVYA d3SSISSY
101d1S1a TOOHOS HOIH TYNOI93Y SIIHIOOA-NOTHIINNH HLYON

6# 1d3HS
29T LIgIHX3

142



001 ¢ Jod aue sojel xe] (q)

saluedwo) wa)sAg Jabusssayy pue ydeibsje] ‘suoydsia] jo Juswdinb3 pue sjusws|dw] ‘Aisulyoejy JO snjeA ejgexe] (e}

uonexe] Jo pjeog AJUnoD oy AQ peisplo UsSym SINDOC JUSLLSSISSEDY

‘uoljexe} Jo pleoq AJunoo yoes Ag paysi|geisa (enjea 1axiew JO Jiey) anjea anui jo abelusoiad swos Je passasse g o) paiinbal st Ausdold [eay 210N

sajgeley 40 eliSqy 120.N0S

8080 0vZ 005 ev0'L 010°L20'L¥L 685°¢8Z'L Lev'vrL'ees 008'/58°} 006'CLY'e 005991 v€ LZL'0LV'LL 00€'Ley'809 00C'LLL YL 9002
8G.°0 29/.'615°160°) €.£'6£0'8Y. 85wl SY8'vZ6'9v. 008°LS8’L 006°0LY'E G78'966'9¢ 006'9€9'¢L 00.'698'L19 00L'esiel £00¢
€L20 €Lz'g9L'lel’L 0L0'L8Y¥'ZS. 006'cey'L 0L1',66'06L 00l°L6L'C [elo] MR 24 00€°/6.2'¢ee 01G'8€8°9L 00%'208°129 005'6G6'L 1 8002
6LL0 G69°,58°080'L 666'6£2'G5L 718'912°L G81'€20'¥S. 004'GE6'L 00.'6e8'¢ 005'8¢L e G86'129'9L 006'L¥0'929 00y’ LL 6002
690 198'/19'LE0"L ¥5.'918'86. Z86'LLY'L ZLL'YYE LSL 00.'G€6°L 006°0LY'E 00zZ'/6.L'€E ZLL'yEr'9L 006'925'0€9 0068111 0102
8LL0 10€'0Z¥'996 851 'Cr6'6Y.L Lze'oze'L 1€€'GLL'8Y. 00.'6¢6'L 006'0L¥' 00L'sv9'ce LE2'SY0'8L 006'891°129 006'606°CL Lioc
/690 Ov.'vE6'vE6 vev'zie'syl Gy6'9ze’L 6.¥'G88'eY. 00/'G€6'L 0oL'ove'e 005'896'¢ce 6.1°685°08 00v'6.2'€L9 £00'9/5'ClL [4304
L1970 /15'619'268 0.8'606'9¢L 1es'L8 6£€'cT8'9¢L oov'zie'L 0oL'ove’e 006'vZE've 6€.'810°18 00.4'L¥2'909 0058 6 (542014
6990 LYO'vZ 1098 62'0L6'9¢L 0869 6¥6'0v8°'9€. 0ov'zle'L ooL'ove’e 00£'98L've 6Y.'GYvS'8L 006'€81'609 005'2.9'6 102
S.9°0 0S9'v€.'8.8% 880'v6S 0V.$ 9/2'89% 218'62S'0v.LS 00¥'Ci6'LS 001 0¥€'eS 00€ 286 v€$ 219'880'¢.L$ 00.'269'L19$ 00£'60G6'6% §10¢C
(g) 8ied XeL [ERIEIN Sjgexe] (e) ssmimn SN[EA P3SSassY justipedy [ersnpu [CIRIETV o) tieq [EnuspIsay pueT Juedsen 0g sunf
jooyos paziienb3 Aluno)) uonen|ea a1gnd lejol papu3
108117 €301 [enoy 183 18N JesA (eosiy
a3 LIanvNn

NONYE37 40 dIHSNMOL - ALd3d0dd 319YXVL 40 ANTVA TYNLOV ANV INTVA GISSISSY
1OM1S1A TOOHOS HOIH T¥YNOID3Y S33HHOOA-NOGQYILNNH HLHON

Ol# 133HS
W81 LIFIHX3

143



001 ‘ad ale sajel xe] (q)

saiuedwio) waishs 1aBusssaly pue ydeiBsia ] ‘suoydsia | o Juswidinb3 pue sjuswaiduw ‘A:suiyoey Jo eneA sjqexe] (e)

uonexe} Jo pieog Alunoy aul Aq paiapio usum SINS00 jusuissesseay

OlexE} 4O PIeog AJUN0D Loes Aq PaUSIRISa (3NfeA Ja18uL 10 Jigy) anjen anu JO BelLs0sad sWos Je passasse aq O paunbal si Aledoid (Eey BloN

s8|geIRY 10 JORIISqY [80In0g

L¥S0 099'667 ¥08'L 666'8Y6'CZE’L 860'SPL'C 00E'€08'0ZE'L 001 298'C 009°G5¢'8S 008'cLe91e 006'G6£920'L 005'9i8°91 200¢
2250 ZvS'TL5186'L 98’891 evE’L 98/L°LyEL 002022 Lve'L 000'€eL’e 00.'6¥.'8S 00€'92y ¥2Z 008'988°0¥0'L 006'vCr vi 2002
06v'0 IYL'TLI0VEL €80°L¥L'9G€EL €31'508'L 006°L¥EVSe'L 000'¥0€'S 00€°L6Y'85 009'8£5'922 0012yL'610L 006'59¢ 71 800¢
2150 £91'992'898"1 v06'12L09€L 898'5L9'} 9€0'90L'65€E'L 000'70€'S 005'€05'8S 9€€'06%' 922 00L'€L5'€S0°} 006 veEZ 'St 600¢
2Ly 0 122851y’ L 619656 V9| £€6'098 1 989'860'€9¢€'L 000'v0e’S 008'L€T'6S 9e8'L§/'zeT 008°LS5'0G0'L 002658 ¥i 010z
L1G0 059'CLE08L'L G8L'Les'goe’ L G/6'€S6') 0lZ'LLG'€9E’L 000'v0€E'S 00v'L2v'8S 01£'088'vEC 004'GL0°L50°} 008'688'Cl 3304
9vs 0 VLl YI9YTL ) €5€'00e°eGe" L 881°290'C gol'eez’ise’t 000'v0E'S 006°€SY' LY G9G'V6L LEZ 008'5£8'810"L 006 vy 'zl cloe
19670 968'cSeLTLL 80¥'L08 ¥GE'L EYP'100C G96'G08'ZSE | 000'¥0€'S 00Z'€0S'LY §9.°'6¥2'5¢C 006'655°250" | 0oL'esl'zl €Loe
12970 G/¥'905'vEQ') 622'607'LGE'L y9Z'8v0'C G96'09¢'G5¢€ L 000'¥0€'S 002'€0S LY §96'9G1'8¢€C 006'609'250'1 00€L6L L1 vi0C
8090 666'G58'G19'LS  8EQ'LBZGSELS  €L¥'99E'CS S9e°Le6'25E' LS 000 #08'2$ 006'29€' LS S99'vEP'9EZ8  00C'880'SSO LS 009'LPZ'1is Gl0c
(g) sied xe [ERIEIN a|gexe | (e) senijiin anje/ pessassy Juswpuedy [emsnpuj {erolswwo)d ule4 _;m_«cmb_wmm pueT 1uedep ‘0¢ sunp
1004yos pazilenb3 Auno)) uonenien dland [eloL papuz
303117 B0l [ENPY 155 BN Je9A [e0s!y
a3Lanvnn

AANESHMAL 40 dIHSNMOL - ALH3d0dd F19VXVYL 40 INTVA TVNLOV ANV INTVA 3SSISSY
101K LSIA TOOHOS HOIH TYNOID3H SFIHIOOA-NOTHILNNH HLHON

TI# 133HS
80 L1gIHX3

144



001 ¢ Jad ale sajes xe] (q)

saiuedwoy wajsAg sebusssaly pue ydeibsje] ‘suoydsie] jo Juswdinbg pue sjuswaidw] ‘AISUIYoB) JO aNnjEA S|gEXE ] ()

uonexe| jo pJeog Alunoy eyl Aq paisplo Usym SINO00 JUBLUSSSSSESY

‘uoljexe} Jo pleoq Ajunod yoes Aq paysiigelss (snfen 1exiew 1o Jiey) anjea anl) jo ab6ejusoIad SWos je pessasse oq o1 palinbai s Apadold [esy 910N

se|geley 0 JOBISAY [80JN0S

6690 €529l 256 800'998°€99 0r€'GL9') 899'061 292 006'0€C 00126l 'YL 000'z99'20L GLG'Er8'Ze 008'GSl 'G6Y €6€'90L L1 900¢
1290 ZLS'G60'196 G/6'261°GL9 L02'G.9') 89/°L16'€/L9 006°0€C 00126l 'L 000'299'20L Gle'czo'ee 00L°L¥6'L0S €5L'Lov'Le 2002
0690 LEG'EQZ'OV0’L ¥€9'G61 649 916'/68') 811'8€€'219 006'0€C 001°Z6L vl 008'26Z'c6 G98'0ze'cE 00¥'0€2'6LG £50°L20°LL 800¢
L7, 0 660679600} 62.'221°269 0L1'90G'} 619'919'069 006'0€C 00L'zeL vl 00Z'eri'ee 519'8/8'¢ce 008°L82'1€G y00'¥88°LL 600¢C
vL0 ¥68'906'1.26 020'006'v69 §/9'6L0'7 GYE'08Y'Z69 006'0€2 00126l 'L 006'068'26 Ly8'zLl'ee 001'298'v€S #06'98G°9} 0loc
£v. 0 061'928'6.8 ££9'802°G89 25.'%29'9 G88'€85'8/9 006'0¢C 00,°98€'01L 00L'7Lv'88 186'20L'GE 001'651'625 701'G89'vl Lioe
8€L0 128'118'G98 96.'810°989 25,9299 Yr0'v6£'6.9 006'0¢€C 00.'98€°01 00Z'cy.'68 9€6'CLE9E 001'859'8ZS 802190 ¥4 14504
8¢.°0 Zr0'866°L8 L0S'€L7'€89 €96 ¥/ 9 Y¥G'82L'9L9 006°'0€C 002'98¢€°0L 009'G0.'68 9€2'951'9¢ 008'8¥¥'92S 80€°005°€L [ Aer4
G690 29¢'G€6'€8. 611911089 00,606t 6L¥'90C'GL9 006°0€C 00£'98€'0L 005'26.'88 L16'€29'8€ 00.'6¥0'C2S 80L'€L0'GL ¥10C
§99°0 0€Y'290'v08% 879'860°¢69% 6% 1GG'860'€69% 006'0€2% 004'98€°0L% ZEL'SLYPOLS  LIP'S0Z'LES 00L'/¥Z'¥2G%  80L'€SS'OLS §Loc
(QEENEC [EREN S|gexe | SN\ PoSSassyY juswiiiedy [emsnpu] [eroIawito) WiEq {enuapisay pueT JUESEA "0¢ aunp

jooyos pazijenb3 Auno)) uonenea |elol papug
jo8liq (e L [eNOY 183 BN 1B\ [BOSIH

a3 LianvNn
NOINN 40 dIHSNMOL - ALY3d0¥d FT1aVYXVL 40 INTVA TVNIOV ANV INTYA A3SS3ISSY
10141S1d TOOHOS HOIH TVYNOID3Y STIFHHOOA-NOQYIINNH HLION

Cl# 133HS

WM. LIgIHX3

145



EXHIBIT "J-7"

SHEET #1
NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
UNAUDITED
Township of Bethlehem Overlapping Rates
Fiscal Year General Total Direct Total Direct and
Ended Obligation School Township of District Hunterdon Overlapping

June 30, Basic Rate (a) Debt Service (b) Tax Rate Bethlehem School County Tax Rate
2015 $0.699 $0.012 $0.711 $0.387 $1.409 $0.392 $2.899
2014 0.644 0.011 0.655 0.377 1.382 0.390 2.804
2013 0.665 0.011 0.676 0.372 1.387 0.388 2.823
2012 0.646 0.011 0.657 0.372 1.395 0.398 2.822
2011 0.638 0.011 0.649 0.364 1.396 0.408 2.817
2010 0.667 0.012 0.679 0.348 1.435 0.431 2.893
2009 0.623 0.011 0.634 0.348 1.435 0.431 2.848
2008 0.630 0.012 0.642 0.338 1.384 0.375 2.739
2007 0.766 0.014 0.780 0.330 1.367 0.447 2.924
2006 0.624 0.012 0.636 0.321 1.290 0.453 2.700

Source: Abstract of Ratables
(Rates are per $100 of assessed value)

NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy. The levy when
added to other components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by
more than the spending growth limitation calculated as follows: the prebudget year net budget increased
by the cost of living or 2.5 percent, whichever is greater, plus any spending growth adjustments.

(a) The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the Net
valuation taxable

(b) Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.
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EXHIBIT "J-7"

SHEET #2
NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
UNAUDITED
Borough of Califon Overlapping Rates
Fiscal Year General Total Direct Total Direct and
Ended Obligation School Borough of District Hunterdon Overlapping
June 30, Basic Rate (a) Debt Service (b) Tax Rate Califon School County Tax Rate
2015 $0.600 $0.010 $0.610 $0.546 $1.523 $0.342 $3.021
2014 0.601 0.010 0.611 0.528 1.490 0.345 2.974
2013 0.536 0.009 0.545 0.486 1.465 0.345 2841
2012 0.575 0.010 0.585 0.470 1.433 0.354 2.842
2011 0.573 0.009 0.582 0.452 1.397 0.355 2.786
2010 0.466 0.008 0.474 0.400 1.203 0.310 2.387
2009 0.448 0.008 0.456 0.400 1.203 0.310 2.369
2008 0.450 0.008 0.458 0.384 1.153 0.333 2.328
2007 0.442 0.008 0.450 0.391 1.109 0.332 2.282
2006 0.490 0.009 0.499 0.381 1.083 0.337 2.300

Source: Abstract of Ratables
(Rates are per $100 of assessed value)

NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy. The levy when
added to other components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by
more than the spending growth limitation calculated as follows: the prebudget year net budget increased
by the cost of living or 2.5 percent, whichever is greater, plus any spending growth adjustments.

(a) The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the Net
valuation taxable

(b) Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.
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EXHIBIT "J-7"

SHEET #3
NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
UNAUDITED
Town of Clinton Overlapping Rates
Fiscal Year General Total Direct Total Direct and
Ended Obligation School Town of District Hunterdon Overlapping
June 30, Basic Rate (a)  Debt Service (b) Tax Rate Clinton School County Tax Rate
2015 $0.529 $0.009 $0.538 $0.735 $1.443 $0.401 $3.117
2014 0.558 0.009 0.567 0.685 1.425 0.401 3.078
2013 0.576 0.010 0.586 0.627 1.379 0.374 2.966
2012 0.523 0.009 0.532 0.477 1.200 0.334 2.543
2011 0.508 0.008 0.516 0.456 1.165 0.323 2.460
2010 0.499 0.009 0.508 0.445 1.108 0.340 2.401
2009 0.488 0.009 0.497 0.445 1.108 0.340 2.390
2008 0.464 0.008 0472 0.436 1.070 0.348 2.326
2007 0.461 0.008 0.469 0.417 1.040 0.359 2.285
2006 0.472 0.009 0.481 0.435 1.034 0.350 2.300

Source: Abstract of Ratables
(Rates are per $100 of assessed value)

NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy. The levy when
added to other components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by
more than the spending growth limitation calculated as follows: the prebudget year net budget increased
by the cost of living or 2.5 percent, whichever is greater, plus any spending growth adjustments.

(a) The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the Net
valuation taxable

(b) Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.
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EXHIBIT "J-7"

SHEET #4
NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
UNAUDITED
Township of Clinton Overlapping Rates
Fiscal Year General Total Direct Total Direct and
Ended Obligation School Township of District Hunterdon Overlapping
June 30 Basic Rate (a)  Debt Service (b) Tax Rate Clinton School County Tax Rate
2015 $0.665 $0.011 $0.676 $0.319 $1.167 $0.388 $2.550
2014 0.648 0.011 0.659 0.299 1.157 0.377 2.492
2013 0.631 0.011 0.642 0.282 1.147 0.369 2.440
2012 0.611 0.010 0.621 0.261 1.106 0.343 2.331
2011 0.556 0.009 0.565 0.231 1.010 0.331 2.136
2010 0.535 0.010 0.545 0.204 0.926 0.336 2.011
2009 0.522 0.010 0.531 0.204 0.926 0.336 1.997
2008 0.498 0.009 0.508 0.198 0.924 0.340 1.970
2007 0.490 0.009 0.499 0.217 0.922 0.361 1.999
2006 0.493 0.009 0.502 0.208 0.827 0.363 1.900
Source: Abstract of Ratables

(Rates are per $100 of assessed value)

NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy. The levy when
added to other components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by
more than the spending growth limitation calculated as follows: the prebudget year net budget increased
by the cost of living or 2.5 percent. whichever is greater, plus any spending growth adjustments.

(a) The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the Net

valuation taxable

(b) Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.
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EXHIBIT "J-7"

SHEET #5
NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
UNAUDITED
Township of Franklin Overlapping Rates
Fiscal Year General Total Direct Total Direct and
Ended Obligation School Township of District Hunterdon Overlapping
June 30, Basic Rate (a) Debt Service (b) Tax Rate Franklin School County Tax Rate
2015 $0.602 $0.010 $0.612 $0.330 $1.096 $0.381 $2.419
2014 0.657 0.011 0.668 0.325 1.077 0.400 2.470
2013 0.649 0.011 0.660 0.319 1.056 0.372 2.407
2012 0.623 0.011 0.634 0.312 1.036 0.379 2.361
2011 0.588 0.010 0.598 0.309 0.976 0.358 2.241
2010 0.558 0.010 0.568 0.307 0.932 0.378 2.185
2009 0.579 0.011 0.590 0.307 0.932 0.378 2.207
2008 0.611 0.011 0.622 0.309 0.936 0.401 2.268
2007 0.586 0.011 0.597 0.310 0.951 0.414 2272
2006 0.559 0.010 0.569 0.310 0.927 0.414 2.220

Source: Abstract of Ratables
(Rates are per $100 of assessed value)

NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a gerieral fund tax levy. The levy when
added to other components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by
more than the spending growth limitation calculated as follows: the prebudget year net budget increased
by the cost of living or 2.5 percent, whichever is greater, plus any spending growth adjustments.

(a) The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the Net
valuation taxable

(b) Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.
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EXHIBIT "J-7"

SHEET #6
NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
UNAUDITED
Borough of Glen Gardner Overlapping Rates

Fiscal Year General Total Direct Total Direct and

Ended Obligation School Borough of District Hunterdon Overlapping

June 30, Basic Rate (a) Debt Service (b) Tax Rate Glen Gardner School County Tax Rate

2015 $0.641 $0.011 $0.652 $0.624 $1.266 $0.414 $2.956
2014 0.730 0.012 0.742 0.580 1.212 0.420 2.954
2013 0.678 0.012 0.690 0.426 1.220 0.526 2.862
2012 0.674 0.012 0.685 0.504 1.192 0.437 2.818
2011 0.731 0.012 0.743 0.490 1.176 0.446 2.855
2010 0.727 0.013 0.740 0.463 1.087 0.490 2.779
2009 0.771 0.014 0.785 0.463 1.087 0.490 2.825
2008 0.735 0.013 0.748 0.448 1.102 0.491 2.789
2007 0.662 0.012 0.674 0.451 1.061 0.494 2.680
2006 0.662 0.012 0674 0.442 1.043 0.468 2.627

Source: Abstract of Ratables
(Rates are per $100 of assessed value)

NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy. The levy when
added to other components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by
more than the spending growth limitation calculated as follows: the prebudget year net budget increased
by the cost of living or 2.5 percent, whichever is greater, plus any spending growth adjustments.

(a) The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the Net
valuation taxable

(b) Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.
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EXHIBIT "J-7"

SHEET #7
NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
UNAUDITED
Borough of Hampton Overlapping Rates
Fiscal Year General Total Direct Total Direct and
Ended Obligation School Borough of District Hunterdon Overlapping
June 30, Basic Rate (a) Debt Service (b) Tax Rate Hampton School County Tax Rate
2015 $0.662 $0.011 $0.673 $0.596 $1.435 $0.388 $3.092
2014 0.648 0.011 0.659 0.547 1.461 0.395 3.062
2013 0.641 0.011 0.652 0.523 1.478 0.374 3.027
2012 0.644 0.011 0.655 0.452 1.533 0.375 3.015
2011 0.637 0.011 0.648 0.432 1.605 0.378 3.063
2010 0.493 0.009 0.502 0.309 1.119 0.340 2.270
2009 0.514 0.009 0.523 0.309 1.119 0.340 2.291
2008 0.442 0.008 0.450 0.309 1.203 0.339 2.301
2007 0.388 0.007 0.395 0.305 1.220 0.340 2.260
2006 0.436 0.008 0.444 0.285 1.199 0.292 2.220

Source: Abstract of Ratables
(Rates are per $100 of assessed value)

NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy. The levy when
added to other components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by
more than the spending growth limitation calculated as follows: the prebudget year net budget increased
by the cost of living or 2.5 percent, whichever is greater, plus any spending growth adjustments.

(a) The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the Net

valuation taxable

(b) Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.
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EXHIBIT "J-7"

SHEET #8
NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
UNAUDITED
Borough of High Bridge Overlapping Rates

Fiscal Year General Total Direct Total Direct and

Ended Obligation School Borough of District Hunterdon Overlapping

June 30, Basic Rate (a)  Debt Service (b) Tax Rate High Bridge School County Tax Rate

2015 $0.566 $0.010 $0.576 $0.964 $1.764 $0.402 $3.706
2014 0.592 0.010 0.602 0.875 1.595 0.357 3.429
2013 0.612 0.011 0.623 0.842 1.502 0.357 3.324
2012 0.530 0.009 0.539 0.818 1.446 0.365 3.168
2011 0.571 0.009 0.580 0.789 1.417 0.372 3.158
2010 0.610 0.011 0.621 0.784 1.380 0.389 3.174
2009 0.500 0.009 0.509 0.784 1.380 0.389 3.062
2008 0.515 0009 0.524 0.785 1.334 0.385 3.028
2007 0.527 0.010 0.537 0.750 1.308 0.388 2.983
2006 0.548 0.010 0.558 0.391 1.265 0.376 2.590

Source: Abstract of Ratables
(Rates are per $100 of assessed value)

NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy. The levy when
added to other components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by
more than the spending growth limitation calculated as follows: the prebudget year net budget increased
by the cost of living or 2.5 percent, whichever is greater, plus any spending growth adjustments.

(a) The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the Net
valuation taxable

(b) Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.
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EXHIBIT "J-7"

SHEET #9
NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
UNAUDITED
Borough of Lebanon Overlapping Rates
Fiscal Year General Total Direct Total Direct and
Ended Obligation School Borough of District Hunterdon Overlapping
June 30 Basic Rate (a)  Debt Service (b) Tax Rate Lebanon School County Tax Rate
2015 $0.578 $0.010 $0.588 $0.356 $0.851 $0.371 $2.166
2014 0.616 0.010 0.626 0.330 0.817 0.354 2.127
2013 0.601 0.010 0.611 0.297 0.794 0.361 2.063
2012 0.558 0.010 0.568 0.282 0.833 0.367 2.050
2011 0.567 0.009 0.576 0.251 0.839 0.364 2.030
2010 0.420 0.007 0.427 0.189 0.700 0.316 1.632
2009 0.335 0.006 0.341 0.189 0.700 0.316 1.546
2008 0.348 0.006 0.354 0.181 0.702 0.325 1.562
2007 0.362 0.007 0.369 0.170 0.660 0.342 1.541
2006 0.672 0.013 0.685 0.342 1.335 0.688 3.050

Source: Abstract of Ratables
(Rates are per $100 of assessed value)

NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submiit for a general fund tax levy. The levy when
added to other components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by
more than the spending growth limitation calculated as follows: the prebudget year net budget increased
by the cost of living or 2.5 percent, whichever is greater, plus any spending growth adjustments.

(a) The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the Net
valuation taxable

(b) Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.
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EXHIBIT "J-7"

SHEET #10
NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
UNAUDITED
Township of Lebanon Overlapping Rates

Fiscal Year General Total Direct Total Direct and

Ended Obligation School Township of District Hunterdon Overlapping

June 30 Basic Rate (a) Debt Service (b) Tax Rate Lebanon School County Tax Rate

2015 $0.664 $0.011 $0.675 $0.243 $1.289 $0.440 $2.647
2014 0.658 0.011 0.669 0.176 1.275 0.433 2.553
2013 0.601 0.010 0.611 0.158 1.260 0.440 2.469
2012 0.685 0.012 0.697 0.109 1.347 0.443 2.596
2011 0.706 0.012 6.718 0.101 1.381 0.442 2.641
2010 0.682 0.012 0.694 0.079 1.416 0.494 2.683
2009 0.706 0.013 0.719 0.079 1.416 0.494 2.708
2008 0.700 0.013 0.713 0.074 1.376 0.502 2.665
2007 0.744 0.014 0.758 0.053 1.350 0.508 2.669
2006 0.793 0.015 0.808 0.054 1.275 0.503 2.640

Source: Abstract of Ratables
(Rates are per $100 of assessed value)

NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy. The levy when
added to other components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by
more than the spending growth limitation calculated as follows: the prebudget year net budget increased
by the cost of living or 2.5 percent, whichever is greater, plus any spending growth adjustments.

(a) The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the Net
valuation taxabie

(b) Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.
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EXHIBIT "J-7"

SHEET #11
NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
UNAUDITED
Township of Tewksbury Overlapping Rates

Fiscal Year General Total Direct Total Direct and

Ended Obligation School Township of District Hunterdon Overlapping

June 30, Basic Rate (a) Debt Service (b) Tax Rate Tewksbury School County Tax Rate

2015 $0.598 $0.010 $0.608 $0.410 $0.898 $0.441 $2.357
2014 0.611 0.010 0.621 0.393 0.865 0.446 2.325
2013 0.557 0.010 0.567 0.393 0.865 0.446 2.271
2012 0.537 0.009 0.546 0.394 0.864 0.450 2.254
2011 0.503 0.008 0.511 0.383 0.864 0.447 2.205
2010 0.464 0.008 0.472 0.361 0.868 0.474 2175
2009 0.509 0.009 0.518 0.361 0.868 0.474 2.221
2008 0.481 0.009 0.490 0.360 0.860 0.477 2.187
2007 0.513 0.009 0.522 0.362 0.860 0.490 2234
2006 0.531 0.010 0.541 0.361 0.835 0.483 2.220

Source: Abstract of Ratables
(Rates are per $100 of assessed value)

NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy. The ievy when
added to other components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by
more than the spending growth limitation calculated as follows: the prebudget year net budget increased
by the cost of living or 2.5 percent, whichever is greater, plus any spending growth adjustments.

(a) The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the Net
valuation taxable

(b) Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.
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NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

UNAUDITED
Township of Union Overlapping Rates
Fiscal Year General Total Direct Township
Ended Obligation School of District Hunterdon
June 30, Basic Rate (a)  Debt Service (b) Tax Rate Union School County
2015 $0.654 $0.011 $0.665 $0.262 $1.267 $0.441
2014 0.683 0.012 0.695 0.248 1.280 0.427
2013 0.726 0.012 0.738 0.224 1.273 0.437
2012 0.726 0.012 0.738 0.225 1.264 0.439
2011 0.731 0.012 0.743 0.225 1.365 0.436
2010 0.733 0.013 0.746 0.199 1.330 0.498
2009 0.728 0.013 0.741 0.199 1.330 0.498
2008 0.678 0.012 0.690 0.185 1.301 0.507
2007 0.659 0.012 0.671 0.152 1.271 0.516
2006 0.647 0.012 0.659 0.078 1.242 0.511

Source: Abstract of Ratables
(Rates are per $100 of assessed value)

NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy. The levy when
added to other components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by
more than the spending growth limitation calculated as follows: the prebudget year net budget increased
by the cost of living or 2.5 percent, whichever is greater, plus any spending growth adjustments.

(a) The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the Net
valuation taxable

(b) Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.
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Total Direct and
Overlapping
Tax Rate

$2.635
2.650
2672
2.666
2.769
2.773
2.768
2.683
2610
2.490
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EXHIBIT "J-9"
SHEET#1

NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
TOWNSHIP OF BETHLEHEM

UNAUDITED
Fiscal Year Taxes Levied Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy (a)
Ended for the Percentage Collections in
June 30 Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Subsequent Years
2015 $3,460,612.00 $3,460,612.00 100.00% -
2014 3,577,719.00 3,577,719.00 100.00% -
2013 3,470,891.61 3,470,891.61 100.00% -
2012 3,450,922.19 3,450,922.19 100.00% -
2011 3,608,270.05 3,608,270.05 100.00% -
2010 3,369,299.34 3,369,299.34 100.00% -
2009 3,394,583.63 3,394,583.63 100.00% -
2008 3,350,064.74 3,350,064.74 100.00% -
2007 3,330,541.80 3,330,541.80 100.00% -
2006 3,317,832.39 3,317,832.39 100.00% -

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is
required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in is the amount voted upon or certified prior
to the end of the school year.
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EXHIBIT "J-9"

SHEET #2
NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
BOROUGH OF CALIFON
UNAUDITED

Fiscal Year Taxes Levied Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy (a)

Ended for the Percentage Collections in
June 30 Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Subsequent Years

2015 $889,663.00 $889,663.00 100.00% -

2014 796,161.00 796,161.00 100.00% -

2013 861,863.28 861,863.28 100.00% -

2012 864,897.48 864,897.48 100.00% -

2011 787,415.12 787,415.12 100.00% -

2010 753,521.42 753,521.42 100.00% -

2009 758,379.56 758,379.56 100.00% -

2008 733,834.32 733,834.32 100.00% -

2007 810,976.68 810,976.68 100.00% -

2006 854,048.63 854,048.63 100.00% -

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)
Note: Schoo! taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is

required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in is the amount voted upon or certified prior
to the end of the school year.
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EXHIBIT "J-9"
SHEET #3

NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
TOWN OF CLINTON

UNAUDITED
Fiscal Year Taxes Levied Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy (a)
Ended for the Percentage Collections in
June 30 Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Subsequent Years
2015 $1,983,294.00 $1,983,294.00 100.00% -
2014 2,030,266.00 2,030,266.00 100.00% -
2013 2,193,707.24 2,193,707.24 100.00% -
2012 2,185,467.84 2,185,467.84 100.00% -
2011 2,186,269.99 2,186,269.99 100.00% -
2010 2,147,868.84 2,147,868.84 100.00% -
2009 2,085,411.46 2,085,411.46 100.00% -
2008 1,939,691.23 1,939,691.23 100.00% -
2007 1,992,763.63 1,992,763.63 100.00% -
2006 1,876,802.46 1,876,802.46 100.00% -

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is
required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in is the amount voted upon or certified prior

to the end of the school year.
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EXHIBIT "J-9"
SHEET #4

NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
TOWNSHIP OF CLINTON

UNAUDITED

Fiscal Year Taxes Levied Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy (a)

Ended for the Percentage Collections in
June 30 Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Subsequent Years

2015 $14,089,806.00 $14,089,806.00 100.00% -

2014 13,794,261.00 13,794,261.00 100.00% -

2013 13,760,939.76 13,760,939.76 100.00% -

2012 13,739,949.19 13,739,949.19 100.00% -

2011 13,861,837.08 13,861,837.08 100.00% -

2010 13,842,723.18 13,842,723.18 100.00% -

2009 13,237,706.37 13,237,706.37 100.00% -

2008 12,914,268.66 12,914,268.66 100.00% -

2007 12,952,475.42 12,952,475 .42 100.00% -

2006 12,324,824 .54 12,324,824 .54 100.00% -

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is
required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in is the amount voted upon or certified prior
to the end of the school year.
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EXHIBIT "J-9"
SHEET#5

NORTH HUNTERDON-YOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
TOWNSHIP OF FRANKLIN
UNAUDITED

Fiscal Year Taxes Levied Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy (a)

Ended for the Percentage Collections in
June 30 Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Subsequent Years

2015 $3,606,557.00 $3,606,557.00 100.00% -

2014 3,575,130.00 3,5675,130.00 100.00% -

2013 3,436,045.08 3,436,045.08 100.00% -

2012 3,330,142.42 3,328,142.44 99.94% -

2011 3,178,488.07 3,178,488.07 100.00% -

2010 3,278,234.75 3,278,234.75 100.00% -

2009 3,434,251.04 3,434,251.04 100.00% -

2008 3,266,000.52 3,266,000.52 100.00% -

2007 3,050,041.82 3,050,041.82 100.00% -

2006 2,679,099.38 2,679,099.38 100.00% -

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is
required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balarice, in is the amount voted upon or certified prior
to the end of the school year.
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Fiscal Year

Ended
June 30

2015
2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006

EXHIBIT "J-9"
SHEET #6

NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
BOROUGH OF GLEN GARDNER
UNAUDITED

Taxes Levied Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy (a)

for the Percentage Collections in
Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Subsequent Years
$1,031,958.00 $1,031,958.00 100.00%
959,993.00 959,993.00 100.00%
955,804.92 955,804.92 100.00%
1,036,112.18 1,036,112.18 100.00%
1,061,791.22 1,061,791.22 100.00%
1,095,583.34 1,095,583.34 100.00%
1,045,144.05 1,045,144.05 100.00%
940,007.40 940,007.40 100.00%
1,011,359.60 1,011,359.60 100.00%
875,482.63 875,482.63 100.00%

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is
required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in is the amount voted upon or certified prior
to the end of the school year.
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NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Fiscal Year Taxes Levied
Ended for the
June 30 Fiscal Year

2015 $800,395.00
2014 797,213.00
2013 806,944.76
2012 803,947.03
2011 755,595.01
2010 792,915.36
2009 680,811.58
2008 584,881.44
2007 639,950.54
2006 577,614.27

BOROUGH OF HAMPTON

UNAUDITED

Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy (a)

Amount

$800,395.00

797,213.00
806,944.76
803,947.03
755,595.01
792,915.36
680,811.58
584,881.44
639,950.54
577,614.27

Percentage
of Levy

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

EXHIBIT "J-9"
SHEET #7

Collections in
Subsequent Years

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is
required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in is the amount voted upon or certified prior

to the end of the school year.
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EXHIBIT "J-9"
SHEET #8

NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
BOROUGH OF HIGH BRIDGE
UNAUDITED

Fiscal Year Taxes Levied Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy (a)
Ended for the Percentage Collections in
June 30 Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Subsequent Years
2015 $2,163,708.00 $2,163,708.00 100.00% -
2014 2,269,070.00 2,269,070.00 100.00% -
2013 2,009,596.94 2,009,596.94 100.00% -
2012 2,187,434.29 2,187,434.29 100.00% -
2011 2,137,753.42 2,137,753.42 100.00% -
2010 1,930,639.78 1,930,639.78 100.00% -
2009 2,015,855.67 2,015,855.67 100.00% -
2008 2,044,375.73 2,044,375.73 100.00% -
2007 2,118,080.13 2,118,080.13 100.00% -
2006 2,071,760.35 2,071,760.35 100.00% -

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is
required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in is the amount voted upon or certified prior
to the end of the school year.
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EXHIBIT "J-9"
SHEET #9

NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
BOROUGH OF LEBANON

UNAUDITED
Fiscal Year Taxes Levied Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy (a)
Ended for the Percentage Collections in
June 30 Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Subsequent Years
2015 $1,716,430.00 $1,716,430.00 100.00% -
2014 1,708,523.00 1,708,523.00 100.00% -
2013 1,530,021.88 1,530,021.88 100.00% -
2012 1,626,133.70 1,626,133.70 100.00% -
2011 1,506,122.35 1,506,122.35 100.00% -
2010 1,121,754.22 1,121,754.22 100.00% -
2009 1,145,791.78 1,145,791.78 100.00% -
2008 1,290,053.07 1,290,053.07 100.00% -
2007 1,178,364.22 1,178,364.22 100.00% -
2006 1,028,025.59 1,028,025.59 100.00% -

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is
required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in is the amount voted upon or certified prior
to the end of the school year.
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EXHIBIT "J-9"
SHEET # 10

NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
TOWNSHIP OF LEBANON

UNAUDITED
Fiscal Year Taxes Levied Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy (a)
Ended for the Percentage Collections in
June 30 Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Subsequent Years
2015 $4,932,887.00 $4,932,887.00 100.00% -
2014 5,279,455.00 5,279,455.00 100.00% -
2013 5,198,112.15 5,198,112.15 100.00% -
2012 5,384,155.77 5,384,155.77 100.00% -
2011 5,265,586.23 5,265,586.23 100.00% -
2010 5,426,557 .44 5,426,557.44 100.00% -
2009 5,361,423.05 5,361,423.05 100.00% -
2008 5,653,482.10 5,653,482.10 100.00% -
2007 5,978,785.88 5,978,785.88 100.00% -
2006 5,563,372.92 5,563,372.92 100.00% -

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note: School taxes are coliected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is
required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in is the amount voted upon or certified prior
to the end of the school year.
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EXHIBIT "J-9"
SHEET# 11

NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
TOWNSHIP OF TEWKSBURY

UNAUDITED

Fiscal Year Taxes Levied Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy (a)

Ended for the Percentage Collections in
June 30 Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Subsequent Years

2015 $8,439,453.00 $8,439,453.00 100.00% -

2014 7,686,213.00 7,686,213.00 100.00% -

2013 7,390,120.67 7,390,120.67 100.00% -

2012 6,985,439.21 6,985,439.21 100.00% -

2011 6,454,331.89 6,454,331.89 100.00% -

2010 7,050,418.17 7,050,418.17 100.00% -

2009 6,648,564.62 6,648,564.62 100.00% -

2008 6,989,314.04 6,989,314.04 100.00% -

2007 7,151,589.10 7,151,589.10 100.00% -

2006 7,515,960.95 7,515,960.95 100.00% -

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is
required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in is the amount voted upon or certified prior
to the end of the school year.
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EXHIBIT "J-9"
SHEET # 12

NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
TOWNSHIP OF UNION
UNAUDITED

Fiscal Year Taxes Levied Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy (a)
Ended for the Percentage Collections in
June 30 Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Subsequent Years
2015 $4,727,144.00 $4,727,144.00 100.00% -
2014 5,132,380.00 5,132,380.00 100.00% -
2013 5,069,414.71 5,069,414.71 100.00% -
2012 5,087,861.70 5,087,861.70 100.00% -
2011 5,196,375.60 5,196,375.60 100.00% -
2010 5,164,570.20 5,164,570.20 100.00% -
2009 4,719,415.19 4,719,415.19 100.00% -
2008 4,526,573.75 4,526,573.75 100.00% -
2007 4,369,348.18 4,369,348.18 100.00% -
2006 4,194,503.89 4,194,503.89 100.00% -

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is
required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in is the amount voted upon or certified prior
to the end of the school year.
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Fiscal Year
Ended
June 30

2015
2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006

NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

RATIOS OF NET BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

UNAUDITED

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

General
Obligation
Bonds

$1,475,000.00
2,160,000.00
2,815,000.00
3,440,000.00
4,040,000.00
4,615,000.00
5,245,000.00
5,962,000.00
6,487,000.00
6,992,000.00

Deductions

Net General
Bonded Debt

Outstanding

$1,475,000.00
2,160,000.00
2,815,000.00
3,440,000.00
4,040,000.00
4,615,000.00
5,245,000.00
5,962,000.00
6,487,000.00
6,992,000.00

Percentage of
Actual Taxable

Value (a) of
Property

0.02%
0.04%
0.04%
0.05%
0.05%
0.06%
0.06%
0.07%
0.08%
0.09%

EXHIBIT "J-11"

Per Capita (b)

55.83
67.98
79.32
90.41
99.90
113.61
123.81
133.64

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

(a) See Exhibit NJ J-6 for property tax data.

(b) Population data can be found in Exhibit NJ J-14.

*. Data not available at time of audit

183



Governmental Unit

Debt repaid with property taxes

Municipal Debt

Township of Bethlehem
Borough of Califon
Town of Clinton
Township of Clinton
Township of Franklin
Borough of Glen Gardner
Borough of Hampton
Borough of High Bridge
Borough of Lebanon
Township of Lebanon
Township of Tewksbury
Township of Union

Local Schools Debt

Township of Bethlehem
Borough of Califon
Town of Clinton
Township of Clinton
Township of Franklin
Borough of Glen Gardner
Borough of Hampton
Borough of High Bridge
Borough of Lebanon
Township of Lebanon
Township of Tewksbury
Township of Union

Other Debt
Hunterdon County

Subtotal, overlapping debt

NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014
UNAUDITED

Debt
Outstandin

$6,443,103.09
1,212.250.00
3,744,028.98
23,216,994.03
824,402.53
2,354,474.05
999,466.00
12,892,353.10
4,345,220.79
6,132,956.00
17,543,693.46
3,755,069.22

4,645,000.00
1,055,000.00
1,290,000.00
30,275,879.00
5,775,000.00
None
2,698,000.00
4,695,000.00
None

None
7,328,000.00
12,940,000.00

70,347,424.10

North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District Direct Debt

Total direct and overlapping debt

Estimated
Percentage

Applicable (a)

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

38.81%

Source: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the County Treasurer's Office.
Debt outstanding data provided by the Municipal Chief Financial Officer.

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the District.
This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and
businesses of the district. This process recognizes that, when considering the District's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the

entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However this does not imply that

every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt. of each overlapping payment.

EXHIBIT "J-12"

Estimated Share
of Overlapping
Debt

$6,443,103.09
1.212,250.00
3,744,028.98
23,216,994.03
824,402.53
2,354,474.05
999,466.00
12,892,353.10
4,345220.79
6,132,956.00
17,543,693.46
3,755,069.22

4,645,000.00
1,055,000.00
1,290,000.00
30,275,879.00
5,775,000.00
None
2,698,000.00
4,695,000.00
None

None
7,328,000.00
12,940,000.00

27,298,453.71

$181,464,343.96

7,670,090.82

$189,134,434.78

(a) For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property
values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's taxable value that is within
the district's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total taxable value.
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EXHIBIT "J-14"

NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

UNAUDITED
Per Capita

Year Population (a) Personal Income (b) Personal Income (c) Unemployment Rate (d)
201 5 * * * *
2014 50,246 * * 4.70%
2013 50,425 $3,808,247,275 $75,523 5.90%
2012 50,606 3,650,261,386 72,131 7.10%
2011 50,930 3,532,504,800 69,360 6.90%
2010 51,047 3,335,717,262 65,346 7.80%
2009 52,500 3,468,202,500 66,061 6.80%
2008 52,478 3,611,903,306 68,827 3.99%
2007 52,394 3,5682,230,174 68,371 2.90%
2006 52,318 3,400,774,636 65,002 3.00%

Source:
(a) Population information provided by the NJ Dept. of Labor and Workforce Development.
(b) Personal income has been estimated based upon the municipal population and per capita personal income presented.

(c) Per capita personal income by municipality estimated based upon the 2000 Census published by the US Bureau of
Economic Analysis.

(d) Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept. of Labor and Workforce Development.

*: Data not available at time of audit
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NORTH HUNTERDON-VOORHEES REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

INSURANCE SCHEDULE
JUNE 30, 2015

UNAUDITED
COVERAGE

School Package Policy - Otterstedt Insurance Agency

N.J. School Board Association
Blanket Buildings and Contents $127,404,600.00
Comprehensive General Liability 16,000.00
Boiler and Machinery Insurance 100,000,000.00
School Board Legal Liability - NJSBAIG 16,000,000.00
Comprehensive Automobile Liability 16,000,000.00
Public Employees' Performance

Bond - Treasurer of School Monies 320,000.00
Public Employees' Performance

Bond - Business Administrator 300,000.00

Source: District Records
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DEDUCTIBLE

$5,000.00

5,000.00
5,000.00

1,000.00
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EXHIBIT “K-1"

SuPLEE, CLoONEY & CoMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122
Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education

North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District
County of Hunterdon

Annandale, New Jersey 08801

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the
financial statements of North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District (the "District")
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the District's financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated December 3, 2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
District’s control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the North
Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the District's financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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SuPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the District's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Aople, By 6 5y

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 7

AT

PUBLIC SCHOOL AGLOUNTANT NO. 93

December 3, 2015
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EXHIBIT “K-2"

SuPLEE, CLoONEY & COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122
Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO MAJOR FEDERAL
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS AND
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH U.S. OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 04-04

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education

North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District
County of Hunterdon

Annandale, New Jersey 08801

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited the North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District’s
compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of the North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High
School District's major federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2015. The
District’'s major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor’'s results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal and state programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the North
Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District's major federal and state programs based on
our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and New Jersey OMB 04-
04. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB 04-04 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal or state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about the North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District’'s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for
each major federal and state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal
determination of the North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District’'s compliance.
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SuPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY
Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

In our opinion, the North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District complied, in
all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs for the year
ended June 30, 2015.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District is
responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District’s internal
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on each major federal and state program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for
each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB 04-04, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High
School District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on
the requirements of OMB Circular A-133 and State ofWrsey OMB 04-04. Accordingly, this

report is not suitable for any other purpose. %
) %ﬂy &

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

s

PUBLIC SCHOOL OUNTANT NO. 93

December 3, 2015
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NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

EXHIBIT “K-6”
North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2015

GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state
financial assistance include the federal and state activity of the Board of
Education, North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District. The Board
of Education is defined in Note 1 to the District’s basic financial statements. All
federal and state awards received directly from the federal and state agencies, as
well as federal awards and state financial assistance passed through other
government agencies is included on the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards and state financial assistance.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state
financial assistance are presented on the budgetary basis of accounting with the
exceptions of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented
using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described
in Note 1 of the Board’s basic financial statements. The information in this
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund
on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison statements or schedule (RSI) are
presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-
regulated legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant
agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting,
revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have
been made.

The General fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified
accrual basis with the exception of the revenue recognition of the delayed state
aid payments in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S A.
18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes those payments are not recognized until the
subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the state aid
payment in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the
accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which
recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related
revenue, whereas GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund also
recognizes the last state aid payment in the current budget year, consistent with
N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2.
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North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 20, 2015

NOTE 3: RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is
($1,407.00) for the general fund and ($72,881.29) for the special revenue fund.
See the notes to the required supplementary information for a reconciliation of the
budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and
special revenue funds. Federal awards and state financial assistance revenues
are reported in the Board’s basic financial statements on a GAAP basis as follows:

Federal State Total

General Fund $10,598,625.31 $10,598,625.31
Special Revenue Fund $566,373.01 566,373.01
Capital Projects Fund 1,123,978.59 1,123,978.59
Food Service Fund 114,669.92 5,284.42 119,954 .34
Total Awards &

Financial Assistance $681,042.93 $11,727,888.32 $12,408,931.25

NOTE 4: RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts
reported in the related federal and state financial reports.

NOTE §&: OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported in the Food Distribution Program represent
current year value received and current year distributions respectively. The
amount reported as TPAF pension contributions represents the amount paid by
the state on behalf of the district for the year ended June 30, 2015. TPAF Social
Security contributions represent the amount reimbursed by the state for the
employer’s share of Social Security contributions for TPAF members for the year
ended June 30, 2015.
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EXHIBIT “K-6”

North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District
Hunterdon County, New Jersey

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Section | — Summary of Auditor’'s Results

Financial Statements

(1 Type of Auditor’'s Report Issued: Unmodified
(2) Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:
(a) Material weakness(es) identified? No

(b) Significant deficiencies that are not considered
to be material weaknesses? No

(3) Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted during
the audit? No

Federal Program(s)

@) Internal Control Over Major Federal Programs:
(a) Material weakness(es) identified? No

(b) Significant deficiencies that are not considered
to be material weaknesses? No

(2) Type of Auditor's Report issued on compliance for major federal
Program(s)? Unmodified

(3) Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Circular OMB A-133 and listed in Section il of

this schedule? No
(4) Identification of Major Federal Program(s):
Program CFDA

IDEA Part B, Basic 84.027
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North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District

Hunterdon County, New Jersey

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Section | — Summary of Auditor’s Results (Continued)

Federal Program(s) (Continued)

(5)

(6)

Program Threshold Determination:
Type A Federal Program Threshold > $300,000.00
Type B Federal Program Threshold <= $300,000.00

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular A-1337?

State Program(s)

(M

(2)

©)

4

Internal Control Over Major State Programs:
(a) Material weakness(es) identified?

(b) Significant deficiencies that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Type of Auditor's Report issued on compliance for major state
program(s)?

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with N.J. OMB Circular 04-04 and listed in Section
11l of this schedule?

Identification of Major State Program(s):

Grant
Program Number
Transportation Aid 495-034-5120-014
Reimbursed TPAF
Social Security 495-034-5095-002
School Development
Authority Various
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North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District
Hunterdon County, New Jersey

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Section | — Summary of Auditor’s Results (Continued)

State Program(s) Continued)

(5) Program Threshold Determination:
Type A State Program Threshold > $352.019.00
Type B State Program Threshold <= $352,019.00

(8) Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular A-133? Yes

Section Il - Financial Statement Audit — Reported Findings
Under Government Auditing Standards

Internal Control Findings

None Reported

Compliance Findings

None Reported

Section lll - Findings and Questioned Costs Relative to Major Federal and State Programs

Federal Programs —None Reported

State Programs — None Reported
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EXHIBIT “K-7"

North Hunterdon-Voorhees Regional High School District
Hunterdon County, New Jersey

Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

Not Applicable
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